Public Document Pack

& Gateshead
FH Council

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA

Tuesday, 30 November 2021 at 10.00 am in the Blaydon Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business
1 Application for a Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 128)

Report of the Strategic Director, Economy Innovation and Growth

Contact: Sonia Stewart: email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Monday, 22 November 2021



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
% GatEShead 30 November 2021
Council

TITLE OF REPORT: Application for a Premises Licence:
490 Durham Road, Low Fell, NE9 6HU

REPORT OF: Strategic Director; Economy Innovation and Growth:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the application Hayley Kell for a new
premises licence for 490 Durham Road, Low Fell, NE9 6HU following receipt of a
relevant representation from a member of the public.

2. THE APPLICATION

This report relates to an application by Hayley Kell (The Applicant) for a new
premises licence. The application is attached at Appendix 1.

The application for a new premises licence under s17 of the Licensing Act 2003 is for
the supply of alcohol (on the premises only) and regulated entertainment at the
following times:

e Supply of alcohol (on the premises only)
11:00-23:00 Sunday — Thursday
11:00-00:00 Friday and Saturday

« Regulated Entertainment (Recorded Music)
11:00-23:00 Sunday — Thursday
11:00-00:00 Friday and Saturday

o Regulated Entertainment (Live Music)
12:00-22:30 Monday - Sunday

However a licence is not required to stage a performance of live music, or the
playing of recorded music if:

e ittakes place between 8AM and 11PM; and
e ittakes place at an alcohol on-licensed premises; and
e the audience is no more than 500 people.

This means that —

(a) if the licence is granted for the supply of alcohol for the hours as requested,
the only other licensable activity for determination would be the performance
of recorded music between 11pm and midnight on Fridays and Saturdays

(b) if the licence for the supply of alcohol is refused in its entirety, a licence could

be granted for the performance of live and / or recorded music as set out in
the application; and

Page 3



(c) if the licence for the supply of alcohol is granted for shorter hours than has
been applied for, the performance of live and/or recorded music would then
be licensable during any such residual period.

The application was advertised at the premises and in the local press.

Conditions

The Licensing Authority may attach conditions to any licence which are appropriate
for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. A copy of the Model Pool of
Conditions from Gateshead Council's Statement of Licensing Policy is attached as
Appendix 1.1 that relate to the application.

3. REPRESENTATIONS

The Licensing Authority received two representations from members of the public
during the consultation phase of the application. One of the representations was
subsequently withdrawn following mediation.

The remaining representation is attached as Appendix 2. The individual that

submitted the representation has asked that the Licensing Authority redact their
details for the purpose of the report.

4. PARTIES

The Parties to the hearing will be:

a) Hayley Kell (the applicant)
b) The objector

5. MEDIATION

Mediation was attempted and communication was carried out through email
exchanges with the Licensing Officer acting as an intermediary.

The Applicant provided some additional information and this is attached as Appendix
2.1.

In addition the Licensing Officer drafted up a document showing what conditions
would be addedto a licence if it were to be granted from what the Applicant had
proposed in the application and the ones she had agreed with Northumbria Police.
That document is attached as Appendix 2.2.

The objector has stated that they remain concerned regarding the window and the
use of the yard. The response is attached as Appendix 2.3.

6. FOR CONSIDERATION

The areas for consideration by the Sub-Committee are:

e The application for a premises licence;
e The representation;

Page 4



3

e Whether or not the application should be granted (and if granted, whether in
part or whole); and
e The conditions to be attached to the premises licence (if granted).

7. THE POLICY & GUIDANCE
When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to:

(a) the Statement of Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy, and

(b) the Licensing Act 2003

(c) the Amended Guidance (April 2018) issued under Section 182 of the

Licensing Act 2003 by the Secretary of State.

Some relevant parts of the Policy and Amended Guidance are reproduced in
Appendices 3 and 4. The parties may refer to any part of the Policy and Guidance
during the hearing.

An area plan is attached at Appendix 5.

7. FOR DECISION
The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the application, decide whether or not it

should be granted, and if relevant, attach such conditions as it deems appropriate for
the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.

Page 5



Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

APPENDICES

New premises licence application
Pool of Model Conditions from Gateshead Council's Licensing
Policy

Representation from the Objector

Additional information from the applicant

Conditions from application and in agreement with Northumbria
Police

Response from the Objector

Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy

Relevant Extracts from the Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003.

Area Plan

Page 6



Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/ Hayley Kell
We

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

490 Durham Road
Low Fell

Post town Gateshead Postcode NE96HU

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises  £22,750

Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * please complete section (A) X

b)  aperson other than an individual *

i asalimited company/limited liability pleasc complete section (B)
partnership
ii  asa partnership (other than limited liability) please complete section (B)
iii  as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)
iv  other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)
c) a recogniscd club please complete section (B)
d) a charity please complete section (B)
e) the proprictor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)
f a health service body please complete section (B)

Page 7




g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the please complete section (B)
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Walcs

ga) aperson who is registered under Chapter 2 of please complete section (B)
Part | of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in please complete section (B)
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one
box below):

[ am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
premises for licensable activities; or

I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or

a function discharged by virtuc of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Miss Other Title (for
example, Rev)
Surname Kell First names Hayley Jane
Date ol birth I am 18 years old or over Please tick yes X

Nationality  EEG—_—

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town (e ——] Postcode -
Daytime contact telephone number LA T =T

E-mail address

(optional) o ——— g g

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work

checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 15 for information)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicablc)

Page 8




Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for
| example, Rev)

Surname First names
Date of birth I am 18 years old or over Please tick yes
Nationality

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 15 for information)

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode
Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address

(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partmership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

Page 9




E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule
DD MM  YYYY

When do you want the premises licence to start? | 3 702 2

DD MM YYYY
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

Ground floor commercial unit with access from Durham Road that currently has cafe/restaurant
usage.

Basement floor with access to yard and back lane.
Current rateable value of £22,750.

Exact location can be found using these coordinates- 54.936669204766, -1.5999819071746502

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections | and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick all that
apply

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)
a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) X

f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) X

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (¢), () or (g)

h) (if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box T)

Page 10




Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) X

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 11




A

Plays

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day :Start | Finish

Will the performance of a play take place Indoors

(please read guidance note 3)
Outdoors

Both

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

(please read
guidance note 5)

N ard timi Wi i i I faes f
the performance of plays at different times to those listed in the

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 12




B

Films

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (pleasc read 14008
timings (please read guidance note 3)

guidancc note 7) Outdoors
Day  Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please

read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the exhibition of filme at difierent times to those tisted in ¢
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 13




C

Indoor sporting events | Please give further details (please read guidance notc 4)
Standard days and

timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day  Start  Finish
Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
ind I et i o st it

column on the left, please list (pleasc read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 14




D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day  Start ' Finish

please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Outdoors

Both

Mon
Tue
Wed
Thur
Fri
Sat

Sun

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

note 6)

Page 15




E

Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day 'Start  Finish

Wil the performance of live music take place ' | . X

(please read guidance note 3)
Outdoors

Both

Mon 12:00 22:30

Tue 12:00 22:30

(please read guidance note 4)
Live artists (typically acoustic acts/live vocalists) to perform at
set times of the day to work alongside our use as a restaurant/bar. It
is envisaged that this would be once or twice a week, we have
indicated potential limits (earliest start/latest end) to when
performances would take place.

Wed  12:00 22:30

Thur  12:00 22:30

(please read guidance note 5)

Fri 12:00 22:30

Sat 12:00 22:30

Sun 12:00 22:30

; different ti to those listed in

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 16




F

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the plaving of recorded music take place | . X

(please read guidance note 3)

Tue 11:00 23:00

guidance note 7) Outdoors
Day Start : Finish Both
Mon  11:00 23:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Recorded music to be played during opening times as background

| music to help develop the sense of atmosphere in the restaurant/bar

arca.

Wed  11:00 23:00

Thur  11:00  23:00

(please read guidance note 5)

Fri 11:00  00:00

Sat 11:00  00:00

Sun 11:00 23:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (plcasc read guidance note 6)

Page 17

—=—




G

Performances of dance
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the performance of dance take place Indoors

(please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors
Day :Start | Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed v
(please read guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
Sun

Page 18

R T N e




H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(®

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day  Start Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Indoors
- ick (please read

guidance note 3) Outdoors

Both

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

(please read
guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
] tai 2 similay descripti that falling withi

i isted in the column o
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 19




Late night refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day . Start Finish

Will the provision of late night refreshment

take place indoors or outdoors or both — Jndoory
please tick (please read guidance note 3)
Outdoors
Both

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

N tard timi Wi : I T ises 1
the provision of late night refreshment at different times. to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read

guidance note 6)

Page 20




J

read guidance note 5)

Tue 11:00 23:00

Wed  [1:00 23:00

Supply of alcohol On the X

Standard days and — please tick (please read guidance note 8) premises

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Off the
premises

Day  Start  Finish Both

Mon 11:00  23:00 (please

Fri 11:00 00:00

—_— e

Sat 11:00  00:00

Sun 11:00 23:00

Thur  [1:00  23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the

checklist at the end of the form):

Name Hayley Kell

Date of birth

Address

= _=—
be=_ = & “SentieCs Samu)
Postcode  RRE

Personal licence number (if known)

[ssuing licensing authority (if known)

Page 21




K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

L

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day  Start Finish
Mon  11:00 23:00
Tue 11:.00 23:.00
Wed  11:00 23:00
Thur  11:00  23:00
Fri 11:00  00:00
Sat 11:00  00:00
Sun 11:00  23:00

State any scasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 22




M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)
Please see all notes below.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

The licence shall ensure that there are sufficient, competent, and appropriately trained
staff are on duty at all times when licensable activity is taking place (to fulfil the
terms of the licence and to contribute to preventing crime and disorder).

The licensee will ensure that door supervisors are engaged for duty at the premises
and that their names and licence numbers are recorded in a appropriate book which
will be safely held at the premises (and recorded and stored with back up photographs
each day). This book will be available for inspection for the police or any other
relevant authorised officers.

Glass bottles will not be left in the possession of patrons after service, and will be
removed from customers once the contents are scrved. Glass wine bottles will only
be allowed at the tables of diners and will be removed as soon as they are empty. No
persons will be allowed onto the premises with sealed glass bottles.

All glasses used for the same of alcohol will be tempered glassware (strengthened)
apart from fine winc and champagne glasses.

No glassware will be allowed off the premises.

The staff will be trained to know how many customers will be in the premises at any
given time as part of service and safety procedures.

The maximum occupancy of the premises will be clearly displaycd on a sign clearly
visibly or near or on the front door and by the main bar.

Credible photographic evidence (passport, photo driving licence or proof of age card
only) of age will be requested by the door supervisors as part of the challenge 25
service policy that will be enforced (and backed up by appropriate staff training).
This policy will be announced and confirmed on a clearly worded sign.

Licenced times of operation will be clearly marked on a sign outside the premises,
along with restrictions for children.

A new CCTV will be installed throughout the premises as part of our fit out, this will
also cover the frontage of the unit. Tt will cover all entrances and exits, the till area,
any coverage required by the police. The CCTV will record and store a minimum
period of 28 days of footage and be in operation at all times. CCTV footage will be
made available to the local authority and police whenever needed.

Page 23

"o




The licence holder will cooperate with any reasonable crime prevention initiative that
might be promoted by the licencing authority or police.

The premises licence holder shall comply with any reasonable measures required to
prevent the sale of alcohol to children. (including a challenge 25 policy that will be
strictly enforced). Staff will also be made aware of proxy sales in order to ensure that
sales to adults are not then passed on to children. Staff will refuse to sell products to
any adult that is suspected of passing restricted products to children. Details of any
refusals will be logged in the register. Staff will be given sufficient training with the
licencing authority in the control of age restricted products (which will be refreshed
whenever needed). This training will be recorded. Logged refusals will be backed up
with cctv records.

Staff will be provided with an un obstructed view of the area immediately outside of
the premises entrance.

Persons under the age of 18 will not be allowed in the premises after 21:00 hours each
day.

No person shall be allowed into the premises carrying glass bottles at any time.

Signage will be clearly displayed that will confirm that underage sales of alcohol are
illegal, and that customers will be asked to prove their age.

) Public safety

Notices the actions to be taken in the event of fire or other emergency inctuding how
to summon the fire brigade shall be prominently displayed and protected from
damage or deterioration.

Temporary wiring and distribution systems shall not be provided without notification
to the licencing authority at least 10 days before commencement of the work and prior
inspection by a suitably qualified electrician. Premises shall not be opened to the
public until the work is deemed satisfactory by the above parties. Where it is not
possible to provide 10 days notice to the licencing authority then the work shall be
undertaken by competent / qualified persons.

All temporary electrical wiring distribution systems shall be inspected and certified by
a competent person before they are put to use.
d) The prevention of public nuisance

Windows, doors and fire escapes shall remain closed during proposed entertainment
events within the premises (where such events can be safely held with covid-19, or
any other pandemic scenario, in mind).

Page 24




Noise generated by amplified music shall be controlled by a noise limiting device set
at a level determined by the local authority environmental health officer, such level
being confirmed in writing by the licensee.

Loise limiting devices, once set, cannot be reset or adjusted without consultation with
the local authority environmental health officer;

External doors shall be kept closes except for access and egress (unless they need to
be kept open as part of covid-19 / pandemic management).Door staff shall supervise
this to ensure that the doors are maintained closed as far as possible when public
entertainment is taking place.

Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at exits and other circulatory areas
requesting patrons to leave the premises having regard to the needs of local residents.
In particular, the need to refrain from shouting, slamming car doors and sounding car
homns.

The premises licence holder, designated premise supervisor and door supervisor shall
monitor the activity of persons leaving the premises and remind them of their public
responsibilities where needed (incidents can be logged and backed up with cctv where
needed).

Noisc and vibration from regulated entertainment shall not be audible at the nearest
noise sensitive premises.

There shall be provided as sufficient intervals throughout the premises and grounds,
litter bins which shall be emptied and waste removed on a frequent basis, and staff
and attendants shall as far as reasonably possible ensure that the public and guests do
not litter. The front of the bar would be kept clean and tidy as part of operations to
enhance the venue,

e) The protection of children from harm

Children under the age of 18 years old will not be allowed into the premises after
21:00 hours. Children that are unaccompanied by an adult parent or guardian will not
be allowed into the premises at any time.

The premises manager and licence holder will ensure that all attendants (including
volunteers and staff) who are to supervise children have been properly vetted (by an
enhanced DBS check) and have no convictions that would make them unsuitable to
supervise children.

There will be child protection policies agreed with the licencing authority and they
will be actioned accordingly.

Page 25




Checklist:

Please tick to indicate agreement

X I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
X I have enclosed the plan of the premises.

X I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.

X T have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be
dcsignated premises supervisor, if applicable.

X T understand that I must now advertise my application.

X T understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application
will be rejected.

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limitcd liability partnerships] 1
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work checking
service (please read note 15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Page 26




Declaration

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership) I understand 1
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if T do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on
of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance
note 15).

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and 1s not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating lo a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or
her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to
work check using the Home Office online right to work checking
service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

Signature Hayley Kell

Date 4th October 2021

Capacity Company Director

For joint applications, signature of 2rd applicant or 2n applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (plcasc rcad guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please

state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Post town _ Postcode
Telephone number (if any) —

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

|_

Page 27

S 1}




Notes for Guidance

B

Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.
In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

*  Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

* Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

*  Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23,00 on any day, provided that the audience does not cxcced 1000.
Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.

* Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o aperformance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premiscs.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

* Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premiscs authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not liccnsed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concemed, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

*  Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

Page 28




¢ Cross activity cxemptions: no licence is required between 08,00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
enlertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site
for more than 28 consecutive days.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).

For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve,

Pleasc give timings in 24 hour clock (c.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity,

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. [f you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premiscs, please tick “off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick *both”.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premiscs which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
. The application form must be signed.
. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided

that they have actual authority to do so.

. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent

must sign the application form.

. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications

from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is
resident in the UK who:
* does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
® is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be
certified), or 2) by providing their ‘sharc code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

Page 29




An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies
having the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the
passport to copy].

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a
person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration
control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination
with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number
and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issucd by a Government
agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

Page 30




A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and
is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder
from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently
stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a
national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family
member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the
Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may
stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the
holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when
produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office
under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area)
Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative
rights of residence.

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision,
such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family
member — e.g. 4 marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth
certificate, and

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been
in the UK for more than 3 months:

(1) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the
employer,

(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a
bank,

(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence
of sufficient funds; or

Page 31




(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private
medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating thc holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve
us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at hitps://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensablc activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have
an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work
checking scrvice scts out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order
to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should
submit copy documents as set out above.

Page 32

wF ST




dnoig uosduwig uosu3qoy Y1 40 UDY
Wo2'539331Yy10-3uiodypou@oguy

068PELY LOLO L

NS6 LIIN'PRYS3ID0 HHDULISIOM 34 ‘SaUURIS

v

uoIsiASy

Pe3DoIpul §

v

§v® 3|oog

120¢ sunr
310Qq

umpiq

[4u

/£910L/dN

“oN Buimpag

pPDOY WDYINQ Q4 - 100|{ PUNoOID)

3L

pDaysa1Dg
1134 moq

PDOY WoYIng 06¥

393foug

SVSS UDI|[IUIXDIN

wRiD

Ansibay puo

sn1o1§

$3233}IYydly
aujodyiioN

310N

’10Qq _ ‘A9Yy

"PePUaWD sul| ADpunog 12'90°ST v

0scL: 1
uD|d UOI13DD07 BUS

ZEYZZ0O0} 19qWinu 83uss( “PanIasal YA |y '0Z0Z IWBLAdoD umor) (3) 'Aeans BsuBupIC

4

\
apug

DURHAM RORD

paly 1035y

00L:1
0 |9A=

r I

S

21035 / 22140

=

Uil

00L: L
L- [9A97

7 9101G 1UBWasDg

| 91035 JUaWIaSDY

| b=
b — ]
- —
i
|

s1015

=

pioh

[-]

TINT

Page 33



Page 34




Unisex
Toilet

Fixed
d Booth Bar
M| Seating Service
Area

490 Durham Road

Ground floor plan
Page 35




Page 36




Outside Yard Bin
Storage
Area
Kitchen
Cellar
Area
O

Store Room

B —

490 Durham Road

Basement floor plan
Page 37



Page 38

AR L T £ e

g




APPENDIX 1

LICENSING ACT 2003 - POOL OF MODEL CONDITIONS

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

1.

The Licensee, that is the person in whose name the Premises Licence is issued,
shall ensure that at all times when the premises are open for any licensable activity,
there are sufficient, competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of
fulfiling the terms and conditions of the Licence and for preventing crime and
disorder.

The Licensee shall ensure that on each day that door supervisors are engaged for
duty at the premises, their details (names and licence numbers) are recorded in an
appropriate book kept at the premises. In conjunction with this record book, the
licensee shall also keep an incident book. This record book and incident book must
be available for inspection by the Police or Authorised Officer at all times when the
premises are open.

Glass bottles containing beverages of any kind shall not be left in the possession of
any patrons after service and following the discharge of the contents into an
appropriate glass or drinking vessel.

Glass bottles containing wine may be sold for consumption with a meal taken at a
table, by customers who are seated in an area set aside exclusively for patrons taking
table meals.

No persons carrying open or sealed glass bottles shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open for any licensable activity.

One pint and half pint capacity drinking glasses, and highball (tumbler) drinking
glasses, in which drinks are served, shall be of strengthened glass (tempered
glassware) or of a material whereby in the event of breakage, the glass will fragment
with no sharp edges being left. Alternatively, drinks may be served in non-glassware
drinking vessels (e.g. plastic, polystyrene, waxed paper).

(Note. Weights and measures legislation requires the use of “stamped glasses”
where “meter-measuring equipment” is not in use.)

No glass drinking vessels or glass bottles shall be permitted (in the areas described
in the attached schedule and delineated on the approved plan.)

No patrons shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any
drinking vessel or open glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage.
(Note. This condition shall not apply to patrons who have purchased beverages for
consumption off the premises (within the curtilage of the premises licensed area or
in the area covered by a Pavement Café Licence) with the express consent of the
Licensee, designated premises supervisor or responsible person.)

The Licensee and designated premises supervisor shall ensure that there are
effective management arrangements in place to enable them to know how many
persons there are in the premises at all times when the premises are open for a
licensable activity.

7 January 2016 29

Page 39




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The maximum number of persons permitted to assemble on the licensed premises,
or relevant part of the licensed premises shall be indicated by a fixed notice bearing
the words “Maximum Occupancy” with letters and numbers not less than 20 mm high,
conspicuously sited at each relevant part of the premises and at the reception point.

All members of staff at the premises including Door Supervisors shall seek “credible
photographic proof of age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the
age of 25 years and who is seeking access to the premises or is seeking to purchase
or consume alcohol on the premises. Such credible evidence, which shall include a
photograph of the customer, will either be a passport, photographic driving licence,
or Proof of Age card carrying a “PASS” logo.

A suitably worded sign of sufficient size and clarity shall be displayed at the point of
entry to the premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale, advising
customers that they may be asked to produce evidence of their age.

A conspicuous notice shall be displayed on or immediately outside the premises
adjacent to the entrance to the premises which gives details of times when the
premises are permitted to be open for any licensable activity.

A conspicuous notice shall be displayed on, or immediately outside the premises, or
immediately adjacent to the premises, which gives details of any restrictions relating
to the admission of children to the premises.

A CCTV system shall be designed, installed and maintained in proper working order,
to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority and in consultation with Northumbria
Police. Such a system shall:

* Ensure coverage of all entrances and exits to the Licensed Premises internally
and externally,

e Thetill area
Ensure coverage of such other areas as may be required by the Licensing
Authority and Northumbria Police.

e Provide continuous recording facilities for each camera to a good standard of
clarity. Such recordings shall be retained (on tape or otherwise) for a period
of 28 days, and shall be supplied to the Licensing Authority or a Police Officer
on request.

e Be in operation at all times the premises are in use.

The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor shall co-operate
with any reasonable crime prevention initiative which are promoted by the Licensing
Officer at Gateshead Police Station from time to time.

The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor shall comply
with any reasonable measures required by the Licensing Authority from time to time
relating to preventing the sale of alcohol to children.

A ‘Challenge 25’ policy shall be adopted, ensuring that all members of staff at the
premises shall refuse to sell alcohol to anyone who appears to be under the age of
25 and who is seeking to purchase alcohol unless that person provides credible
photographic proof of age evidence.

7 January 2016 30

Page 40




19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

Implementing and maintaining a ‘Challenge 25 policy, including staff training to
prevent underage sales, and ensuring that all members of staff at the premises shall
seek credible photographic proof of age evidence from any person who appears to
be under the age of 25 and who is seeking to purchase cigarettes and/or alcohol.
Such credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the customer, will either
be a passport, photographic driving licence, or Proof of Age card carrying a ‘PASS’
logo.

Staff are to be made aware of ‘proxy sales’ and shall refuse sales of alcohol to adults
who they suspect are buying alcohol on behalf of children.

Staff shall refuse to sell age restricted products to any adult who they suspect to be
passing age restricted products to under age children (i.e. proxy sales). Details of
these refusals should also be kept in the ledger.

Staff are to be given sufficient training agreed with the Licensing Authority in the
control of age-restricted products, refresher training for existing staff and training for
all new staff.

Accurate training records are to be kept for all staff involved in sales of age-restricted
products.

A refusals ledger shall be maintained, and made available to Local Authority
enforcement officers on request. Refusals to be supported by the CCTV cameras.

Staff are to be provided with an unobstructed view of the area immediately outside
the shop and entrance.

Persons under the age of 18 shall only be allowed to enter or remain on the premises
prior to 21:00 hours each day, and only when accompanied by a responsible adult,
and with the discretion of the Designated Premises Supervisor.

No person carrying open or sealed glass bottles shall be admitted to the premises at
any time that the premises are open for any licensable activity.

There shall be displayed suitably worded signage of sufficient size and clarity at the
point of entry to the premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale advising
customers that underage sales of alcohol are illegal and that they may be asked to
produce evidence of their age.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC SAFETY

29.

30.

Notices detailing the actions to be taken in the event of fire or other emergency,
including how to summon the fire brigade shall be prominently displayed and
protected from damage and deterioration.

Temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall not be provided without
notification to the licensing authority at least ten days before commencement of the
work and prior inspection by a suitable qualified electrician. Premises shall not be
opened to the public until the work is deemed satisfactory by the above parties.

7 January 2016 31

Page 41




31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Where it is not possible to give ten days notification to the licensing authority of
provision of temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems, the work shall be
undertaken by competent, qualified persons.

All temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall be inspected and
certified by a competent person before they are put to use.

An appropriately qualified medical practitioner shall be present throughout a sports
entertainment involving boxing, wrestling, judo, karate or similar.

Where a ring is constructed for the purposes of boxing, wrestling or similar sports, it
must be constructed by a competent person, and inspected by a Building Control
Officer of the Council (at the cost of the applicant). Any material used to form the skirt
around the ring must be flame retardant.

At any wrestling or other entertainment of a similar nature, members of the public
shall not occupy any seat within 2.5 metres of the ring.

Any Licensee wishing to hold a ‘Total Fighting’ event on the licensed premises shall
first apply to the Council for a variation of this licence and in the event that such
application is granted, shall comply with any additional conditions that may be
imposed. The term ‘Total Fighting’ shall include any ‘full contact’ martial arts involving
the combined codes of judo, karate and ju-jitsu, judo, sombo and Olympic wrestling
or any other mixed martial arts.

At water sports entertainments, staff adequately trained in rescue and life safety
procedures shall be stationed and remain within the vicinity of the water at all material
times.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC SAFETY IN THEATRES, CINEMAS, CONCERT
HALLS AND SIMILAR PLACES

38.

The number of attendants on each floor in a closely seated auditorium shall be as
set out on the table below:

Number of members of the Minimum number of attendants required to
audience present on a floor be present on that floor

1 One

101 Two

251 Three

501 Four

751 Five

And one additional attendant for each additional 250 persons (or part thereof)

7 January 2016 32

Page 42




39.

40.

41

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Attendants shall not be engaged in any duties that would hinder the prompt discharge
of their duties in the event of an emergency or entail their absence from that floor or
auditorium where they are on duty.

All attendants shall be readily identifiable to the audience (but this need not entail the
wearing of a uniform).

The premises shall not be used for a closely seated audience except in accordance
with a seating plan(s), a copy of which is available at the premises and shall be shown
to any authorised person on request.

No article shall be attached to the back of any seat which would reduce the clear
width of seatways or cause a tripping hazard or obstruction.

A copy of any certificate relating to the design, construction and loading of any
temporary seating shall be kept available at the premises and shall be shown to any
authorised person on request.

Sitting on floors shall not be permitted except where authorised in the premises
licence or club premises certificate.

Waiting or standing shall not be permitted except in areas designated in the premises
licence or club premises certificate.

In no circumstances shall anyone be permitted to:

sit in any gangway;
e stand or sit in front of any exit; or
e stand or sit on any staircase including any landings.

Except as authorised by the premises licence or club premises certificate, no drinks
shall be sold to, or be consumed by a closely seated audience except in plastic and
paper containers.

Clothing or other objects shall not be placed over balcony rails or upon balcony fronts.

Any special effects or mechanical installation shall be arranged and stored to
minimise any risk to the safety of the audience, the performers and staff.

Except with the prior written approval of the Council and subject to any conditions,
which may be attached to such approval no special effects shall be used on the
premises.

Special effects include:

dry ice machines and cryogenic fog;
smoke machines and fog generators;
pyrotechnics, including fireworks;
real flame;

firearms;

motor vehicles;

® ®# © o o o

7 January 2016 33

Page 43




51

52.

53.

54.

1)

e strobe lighting;

e lasers (see HSE Guide ‘The Radiation Safety of Lasers used for display
purposes’ [HS(G)95] and BS EN 60825: ‘Safety of laser products’);

o explosives and highly flammable substances.

Where premises used for film exhibitions are equipped with a staff alerting system
the number of attendants present shall be as set out in the table below:

Number of Minimum number of Minimum number of other staff on
members of | attendants required to be | the premises who are available to
the audience on duty assist in the event of an emergency

present on

the premises

1-500 Two One
501 - 1000 Three Two
1001 - 1500 Four Four
1501 or more | Five plus one for every Five plus one for every 500 (or part
500 (or part thereof) thereof) persons over 2000 on the
persons over 2000 on the premises
premises

Staff shall not be considered as being available to assist in the event of an emergency
if they are:

e the holder of the premises licence or the manager on duty at the premises; or

e a member of staff whose normal duties or responsibilities are likely to
significantly affect or delay his response in an emergency situation; or

e amember of staff whose usual location when on duty is more than 60 metres
from the location to which he is required to go on being alerted to an
emergency situation.

Attendants shall as far as reasonably practicable be evenly distributed throughout all
parts of the premises to which the public have access and keep under observation
all parts of the premises to which the audience have access.

The staff alerting system shall be maintained in working order and be in operation at
all times the premises are in use.

The level of lighting in the auditorium shall be as great as possible consistent with
the effective presentation of the film; and the level of illumination maintained in the
auditorium during the showing of films would normally be regarded as satisfactory if
it complies with the standards specified in BS CP 1007 (Maintained Lighting for
Cinemas).

7 January 2016 34

Page 44




CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC NUISANCE

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Windows, doors and fire escapes shall remain closed during proposed entertainment
events within the premises

Noise generated by amplified music shall be controlled by a noise limiting device set
at a level determined by the Local Authority Environmental Health Officer, such level
being confirmed in writing to the Licensee.

Noise limiting devices, once set, cannot be reset or adjusted without consultation
with the Local Authority Environmental Health Officer.

The lobby doors at the premises shall be kept closed except for access and egress.
Door staff shall supervise to ensure that the doors are maintained closed as far as
possible when public entertainment is taking place.

Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at exits and other circulatory areas
requesting patrons to leave the premises having regard to the needs of local
residents. In particular, the need to refrain from shouting, slamming car doors and
the sounding of car horns shall be emphasised.

The premises personal licence holder, designated premise supervisor and door
supervisor shall monitor the activity of persons leaving the premises and remind them
of their public responsibilities where necessary.

Noise and vibration from regulated entertainment shall not be audible at the nearest
noise sensitive premises

There shall be provided at sufficient regular intervals throughout the premises and
grounds, litter bins which shall be emptied and waste removed on a frequent basis,
and staff and attendants shall as far as reasonably practicable ensure that the public,
members and guests do not litter.

CONDTIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF HARM TO CHILDREN

64.

65.

66.

Children under 18 years will not be allowed access to the premises.

The club premises certificate holder shall ensure that all attendants (including
volunteers and staff) who are to supervise children have been properly vetted (by an
enhanced DBS check) and have no convictions that would make them unsuitable to
supervise children.

There shall be child protection policies agreed with the Licensing Authority and
actioned accordingly.

7 January 2016 35

Page 45




Page 46




Representation from Objector 1

Emailed to the Licensing Authority on 29 October 2021

Dear sir or madam,

I would like to object to the above application on the following grounds;

w

Our house and garden are overlooked by elevated windows at the rear of the
building, which, whilst not presenting any sort of a problem whilst it was a bank,
would become a significant problem if there were to be groups of possibly inebriated
people overlooking our and others' gardens. | consider this to be a nuisance to
residents (perhaps opaque film could be affixed to the windows to solve this
problem);

Regular live and recorded music until 23.30 or even 00.00 at weekends is
unacceptable in such close proximity to a residential area, and constitutes a public
nuisance. we feel that the music licence should cease at 22:30 at the latest. NB- in
the licence application document, section E, the licence applicant themself has
referred to the premises as a restaurant/bar. It is the development of a fully-fledged
bar that particularly concerns us;

Public disorder and crime are already major concerns in Low Fell, and can only be
increased if another licenced premises opens (for example, as evidence of this, |
regularly find people using the back lane, which we share with the proposed
premises, for relieving themselves, doing drug deals, and occasionally, fighting);

For the same reason, | would be concerned that children's play in the lane would be
inhibited by the possible presence of drinkers/smokers next to them;

| am concerned about the increased levels of litter and rubbish in the lane that are
likely to result from this licence being granted. Whilst Lloyds bank generated
comparatively small and easily handled amounts of rubbish, this is not likely to be
the case with a licenced premises. Large amounts of rubbish, particularly if food-
based, would increase the rat and litter problems we currently have in the lane,
which already cause a public nuisance and compromises local health and safety;

Noise and consequent public nuisance of people leaving pubs in the area at closing
time, would be increased by having another licenced premises in this small area. We
have had front windows smashed in our house three times, always by a drunk
person. These were all reported to and investigated by the Police. We also had a six-
foot graffiti "tag" sprayed onto the end of the house, which whilst not demonstrably
attributable to drunkenness, does nevertheless point up the existing crime and
antisocial behaviour problem in the area;

Page 47




7. Parking is not currently possible at the rear of the property. Any parking would we
trust, be done on the business' own land (i.e. the rear yard, from which the current
fencing had been removed), so as not to obstruct the lane;

9. Increased refuse and consequent refuse collection, and deliveries of business
supplies, will increase congestion in the lane, which is a cul-de-sac. Any licence
granted should in my view be conditional on adherence to agreed principles, to
ensure minimising of disruption (i.e., avoid blocking the lane or causing obstructions.
This is already a significant problem, which we have had report to Police and the
Local Authority);

| hope these objections are deemed relevant to your considerations. Where we live is not a
sought-after, "prime" residential spot- but it is where we are happy, and where we have
made ourselves comfortable. We are only concerned that we do not, piece-by-piece, have
these simple comforts eroded by successive developments such as this.

Yours sincerely,

Names, Address and Contact details (Redacted)

Page 48




Email from applicant with additional information

Good morning,
Thank you for your enquiry regarding the unit on Durham Road.

We thought we would start by giving you a general overview of the plan for the unit. The first part
of our business plan is to open a 60 cover small restaurant and bar with an aim to attract a clientele
aged 30 and above. We want to bring fantastic food and drinks to Low Fell and serve them in a
sophisticated, trendy and unique environment with a community focus. The second phase (if the
first phase is a success) is to open an alternative events and activity space in the basement which
will be host to a wide selection of events. We would aim to do this after 1 or 2 years. During the day
we would like this space to be used by local groups for classes such as baby and toddler socialising
and exercise classes and yoga etc. On an evening we would hope to use this space for talks, movie
nights and live music. The live music have limited attendance because of the size of the space and
would only be held on weekends. We are extremely conscious of noise to the surrounding area so
any live music events would be suitable for the space and monitored to ensure noise levels do not
exceed an acceptable level (internally and externally). | have attached floor plans for the unit so you
can see the events room is at the front of the building with two thick doors (the original bank
security doors) and solid supporting walls between the room and the outside area. We will also be
using noise reducing materials in the fit out of this space to further reduce risk of disturbance to the
surrounding area. | want to stress though that we are our business model is based on being a
restaurant primarily and the events space would be an addition that would compliment the
restaurant offering. We must also stress that it is our ambition to have community focus, and that
means we will always strive to operate with the needs and suggestions of the community in mind.

1. Our house and garden are overlooked by elevated windows at the rear of the
building, which, whilst not presenting any sort of a problem whilst it was a bank,
would become a significant problem if there were to be groups of possibly inebriated
people overlooking our and others' gardens. | consider this to be a nuisance to
residents (perhaps opaque film could be affixed to the windows to solve this
problem);

This is certainly something we will take into consideration when we come to design our fit out of the
unit. We do not want local residents to feel like we are a nuisance and we will be doing everything
we can to ensure their privacy is maintained. At present the window is covered in opaque film in
parts and we could amend this to suit the local needs. It is the ambition at present to have
restaurant tables by the window, with diners sitting.

1.

1. Regular live and recorded music until 23.30 or even 00.00 at weekends is
unacceptable in such close proximity to a residential area, and constitutes a public
nuisance. we feel that the music licence should cease at 22:30 at the latest. NB- in
the licence application document, section E, the licence applicant themself has
referred to the premises as a restaurant/bar. It is the development of a fully-fledged
bar that particularly concerns us;

Recorded music will be played in the restaurant area as background music to compliment the
atmosphere of the space. Any live music would be performed in the events space on weekends only.
Any live music in the basement would finish before 23:00.

1.

Page 49




2. Public disorder and crime are already major concerns in Low Fell, and can only be
increased if another licenced premises opens (for example, as evidence of this, |
regularly find people using the back lane, which we share with the proposed
premises, for relieving themselves, doing drug deals, and occasionally, fighting);

For the same reason, | would be concerned that children's play in the lane would be

inhibited by the possible presence of drinkers/smokers next to them;
No customers would have access to the back lane directly from our premises. The outside yard area
would only be occupied when the events space is in use as a smoking area and this would be closed
at 9pm after which customers would be directed to the main road to smoke. We will actively
encourage customers to be quiet when leaving the premises to minimise any disruption. We aim to
attract a clientele aged 30 and above which we hope would reduce the risk of any disturbances. We
plan on erecting a high screen around the metal security fence to create a further barrier and to
enhance the aesthetic.

1.

1. |am concerned about the increased levels of litter and rubbish in the lane that are
likely to result from this licence being granted. Whilst Lloyds bank generated
comparatively small and easily handled amounts of rubbish, this is not likely to be
the case with a licenced premises. Large amounts of rubbish, particularly if food-
based, would increase the rat and litter problems we currently have in the lane,
which already cause a public nuisance and compromises local health and safety;

The proprietor (Hayley Kell) has two cafes already in Gatehsead and has a hygiene rating of 5-very
good. Sealed bins will be stored on the property and collected weekly to prevent any issue with
vermin or littering in the lane.

1.

1. Noise and consequent public nuisance of people leaving pubs in the area at closing
time, would be increased by having another licenced premises in this small area. We
have had front windows smashed in our house three times, always by a drunk
person. These were all reported to and investigated by the Police. We also had a six-
foot graffiti "tag" sprayed onto the end of the house, which whilst not demonstrably
attributable to drunkenness, does nevertheless point up the existing crime and
antisocial behaviour problem in the area;

We will be doing everything in our power to create a respectable venue in Low Fell. The proprietor
herself lives off the Durham road as well and appreciates the concerns and all owners are residents
of Low Fell (with one living around 300m away) and we will be taking all measures to be considerate
and minimise any impact on the local residents. As part of our licensing agreement we have agreed
to multiple standards that will help to ensure social order and good behaviour. All of our staff will be
trained to operate in a way that implements these rules and standards. We will only be issued with a
licence if we guarantee to maintain high standards on public order and safety. We will be
implementing good quality CCTV at the front and rear which will further help to keep the community

safe.

1. Parking is not currently possible at the rear of the property. Any parking would we
trust, be done on the business' own land (i.e. the rear yard, from which the current
fencing had been removed), so as not to obstruct the lane;

We do not anticipate requiring any parking but if so, we will use the car park on Cross Keys Lane.

Page 50




2.

3. Increased refuse and consequent refuse collection, and deliveries of business
supplies, will increase congestion in the lane, which is a cul-de-sac. Any licence
granted should in my view be conditional on adherence to agreed principles, to
ensure minimising of disruption (i.e., avoid blocking the lane or causing obstructions.
This is already a significant problem, which we have had report to Police and the
Local Authority);

Deliveries will be made between 9am and 5pm on week days to the rear of the building. We
understand that the lane could easily become congested so delivery vehicles will be asked to park
outside of Costa cafe and bring all stock down the lane on trollies. Generally deliveries take around
20-30 minutes to be unloaded and we anticipate around 4 deliveries per week.

We understand the concerns and would like to reassure the residents that we will be taking our
responsibility as occupiers very seriously in regards to minimising general nuisance and disturbance
as much as possible. As residents of Low Fell we want to build a business that is part of the
community and this includes making sure we do not have a negative impact of any surrounding
residents. We will be open to communication going forward to ensure that any concerns are
appeased and also any problems that arise once we start operating will be dealt with swiftly.

We hope this helps answer all concerns but if we can provide any more information please let us
know.

Best regards,

Hayley Kell

Page 51



Page 52




Additional information from the applicant

Good afternoon Rebecca,

Thank you for the call on Friday. As discussed the main concerns of the residents are the
window and the yard space. Please see our proposed resolution for these concerns below.

The window

We are proposing that we partially cover the window (please see document attached). Upon
close inspection of the window, and the view it allows, we believe that there is only limited
view into one of the neighbouring yards. An opaque film on the sides of the bay window will
prevent any view into this yard. The front of the window will remain clear with a view of the
building opposite (please see photographs attached).

We will be leaving this pane clear as we need to have as much natural light entering the
restaurant as possible (to reduce the need for energy / lighting and to help with the
aesthetic). The sun passes the back of the building from midday thus leaving the front facia
shaded which leaves the space very dim. This window will help bring natural light into the
room and add to the atmosphere of the venue. We would also like to reiterate that this
window will have one table in the area and will not be free for people to use as a viewpoint or
standing area.

The Yard

We believe it is vital that the yard is available for use by our customers in order to comply
with relevant regulations pertaining to smoking areas and accessibility: as such we would
need this area for wheelchair and push chair users to provide an outside space and access
to the basement of the building. This will not however be a thoroughfare and to ensure the
privacy of neighbours and limited noise distribution we are proposing-

1. All fencing will be covered internally so there is no view in or out of the yard. This will also
act as a further solid barrier to noise.

2. The yard will always be closed from 9pm.

3. The yard will only be used when the downstairs area is open which we do not foresee as
being every day.

4. Signage will remind users of the respect that is needed for local residents, and that CCTV is in |
place that will monitoring them. Signage will also help to ensure that the rear door remains closed at
all times. This will be further monitored by staff.

Myself and the Co owners and management team is committed to making sure our venue is a
valued community space and this includes strong relationships with neighbours (who we
would also wish to welcome into our venue). We will always be open to discussions about
any issues that arise once we start operating. We want to reassure the residents that we will
are committed to creating a safe community focused space that is valued by all.

Thank you,

Hayley

Page 53



Page 54




Page 55




Page 56




490 Durham Road
Street Plan

L

A8

Gsv | egy LGY| Lvv

The bay window (shown above as a yellow box) has limited visability into neighbouring yards.
We are propsing that we put film on the sides of the window (as shown below) to ensure that there

is no visabilty into yards. This will leave the front of the window exposed with a view of the wall
opposite from inside the restaurant.

Window Film ———» I I <+—— Window Film

Page 57




Page 58

- Ly




The premises operate predominantly as a café / bar / restaurant with ancillary function space.
There will be no change to the operating style of the premises without prior written notice to
the Licensing Authority, which shall advise within 21 days whether a formal application for
variation or a new licence is required and the licence holder shall comply with that direction.

The Licensee shall ensure that on each day that door supervisors are engaged for duty at the
premises, their details (names and licence numbers) are recorded in an appropriate book kept
at the premises. In conjunction with this record book, the licensee shall also keep an incident
book. This record book and incident book must be available for inspection by the Police or
Authorised Officer at all times when the premises are open.

All members of staff at the premises including Door Supervisors shall seek “credible
photographic proof of age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the age of 25
years and who is seeking access to the premises or is seeking to purchase or consume alcohol
on the premises. Such credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the customer, will
either be a passport, photographic driving licence, or Proof of Age card carrying a “PASS” logo.

A suitably worded sign of sufficient size and clarity shall be displayed at the point of entry to the
premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale, advising customers that they may be
asked to produce evidence of their age.

A CCTV system shall be designed, installed and maintained in proper working order, to the
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority and in consultation with Northumbria Police. Such a
system shall:

e Ensure coverage of all entrances and exits to the Licensed Premises internally and
externally as well as the till area;

e All external drinking areas shall be covered by the CCTV and displayed on a monitor
visible by staff;

e Ensure coverage of such other areas as may be required by the Licensing Authority and
Northumbria Police; and

e Provide continuous recording facilities for each camera to a good standard of clarity.
Such recordings shall be retained (on tape or otherwise) for a period of 28 days and shall
be supplied to the Licensing Authority or a Police Officer on request;

e Bein operation at all times the premises are in use.

A record of staff training will be maintained and produced to police or relevant responsible
authority officer on request. All staff involved in sale of alcohol will be trained in respect of the
licensing law. The training shall include an induction training programme which must be
completed and documented prior to the sale of alcohol by any member of staff. The induction
programme will cover subjects including, but not limited to:

Page 59




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

e detecting and preventing underage sales & supplies of alcohal;
e the prevention of crime and disorder; preservation of crime scene and evidence; zero
tolerance to dugs policy;
e consequences of an alcohol sale to a person who is drunk
Training manuals and records will be kept on site at all times.

Staff are to be made aware of ‘proxy sales’ and shall refuse sales of alcohol to adults who they
suspect are buying alcohol on behalf of children.

Staff shall refuse to sell age restricted products to any adult who they suspect to be passing age
restricted products to underage children (i.e. proxy sales). Details of these refusals should also
be kept in the ledger.

A refusals ledger shall be maintained, and made available to Local Authority enforcement
officers on request. Refusals to be supported by the CCTV cameras.

No person carrying open or sealed glass bottles shall be admitted to the premises at any time
that the premises are open for any licensable activity.

The operator and designated premises supervisor shall conduct a full risk assessment covering
all four licensing objectives in case of individual functions held at the premises with capacity of
100+ people including staff. This risk assessment shall consider the use of SIA registered staff.
An appropriate number of SIA registered staff shall be employed for each event. The operator
and designated premises supervisor shall comply with all steps minimising identified risks.

An incident book shall be kept and maintained at the premises to record incidents of crime and
disorder occurring at the premises and incidents in the vicinity brought to the attention of the
management. This book will be kept on site and be available to the Police and the Licensing
Authority on request.

With respect of hire —alcohol shall be sold or supplied only to persons attending functions duly
arranged and held upon the premises by previous arrangement between the hirer & the
premises licence holder at 490 Durham Road. All events and functions where premises have
been hired must be pre-booked and no events are to be held where payment can be made on
entry.

The Designated Premises Supervisor or a responsible person over the age of 18 years
nominated by the DPS in writing shall be in charge and present in the licensed premises at all
times when open to the public. The person in charge shall not engage in any duty which will
prevent him/her from exercising a general supervision.

Page 60




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The licence shall ensure that there are sufficient, competent, and appropriately trained staff are
on duty at all times when licensable activity is taking place (to fulfil the terms of the licence and
to contribute to preventing crime and disorder).

Glass bottles will not be left in the possession of patrons after service, and will be removed
from customers once the contents are served. Glass wine bottles will only be allowed at the
tables of diners and will be removed as soon as they are empty. No persons will be allowed
onto the premises with sealed glass bottles. All glasses used for the same of alcohol will be
tempered glassware (strengthened) apart from fine wine and champagne glasses.

No glassware will be allowed off the premises.

The staff will be trained to know how many customers will be in the premises at any given time
as part of service and safety procedures. The maximum occupancy of the premises will be
clearly displayed on a sign clearly visibly or near or on the front door and by the main bar.

Licenced times of operation will be clearly marked on a sign outside the premises, along with
restrictions for children.

The premises licence holder shall comply with any reasonable measures required to prevent
the sale of alcohol to children including a challenge 25 policy. Staff will also be made aware of
proxy sales in order to ensure that sales to adults are not then passed on to children. Staff will
refuse to sell products to any adult that is suspected of passing restricted products to children.
Details of any refusals will be logged in the register.

Staff will be provided with an un obstructed view of the area immediately outside of the
premises entrance.

Persons under the age of 18 will not be allowed in the premises after 21:00 hours each day.
No person shall be allowed into the premises carrying glass bottles at any time.

Notices the actions to be taken in the event of fire or other emergency including how to
summon the fire brigade shall be prominently displayed and protected from damage or
deterioration.

Temporary wiring and distribution systems shall not be provided without notification to the
licencing authority at least 10 days before commencement of the work and prior inspection by

a suitably qualified electrician. Premises shall not be opened to the public until the work is
deemed satisfactory by the above parties.

Page 61




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

Where it is not possible to provide 10 days notice to the licencing authority then the work shall
be undertaken by competent / qualified persons. All temporary electrical wiring distribution
systems shall be inspected and certified by a competent person before they are put to use.

Windows, doors and fire escapes shall remain closed during regulated entertainment events
within the premises (where such events can be safely held with covid-19, or any other
pandemic scenario, in mind).

Noise generated by amplified music shall be controlled by a noise limiting device set at a level
determined by the local authority environmental health officer, such level being confirmed in
writing by the licensee.

Noise limiting devices, once set, cannot be reset or adjusted without consultation with the local
authority environmental health officer

External doors shall be kept closes except for access and egress (unless they need to be kept
open as part of covid-19 / pandemic management).Door staff shall supervise this to ensure that
the doors are maintained closed as far as possible when regulated entertainment is taking
place.

Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at exits and other circulatory areas requesting
patrons to leave the premises having regard to the needs of local residents. In particular, the
need to refrain from shouting, slamming car doors and sounding car horns.

The premises licence holder, designated premise supervisor and door supervisor shall monitor
the activity of persons leaving the premises and remind them of their public responsibilities
where needed (incidents can be logged and backed up with cctv where needed).

Noise and vibration from regulated entertainment shall not be audible at the nearest noise
sensitive premises.

There shall be provided as sufficient intervals throughout the premises and grounds, litter bins
which shall be emptied and waste removed on a frequent basis, and staff and attendants shall
as far as reasonably possible ensure that the public and guests do not litter. The front of the bar
would be kept clean and tidy as part of operations to enhance the venue.

Children under the age of 18 years old will not be allowed into the premises after 21:00 hours.

Children that are unaccompanied by an adult parent or guardian will not be allowed into the
premises at any time.

Page 62




37. The premises manager and licence holder will ensure that all attendants (including volunteers
and staff) who are to supervise children have been properly vetted (by an enhanced DBS check)
and have no convictions that would make them unsuitable to supervise children. There will be
child protection policies agreed with the licencing authority and they will be actioned
accordingly.

Page 63




Page 64




Objector 1 — response to additional information from applicant

Dear Rebecca,
Thank you for your email response to our enquiry.

After considering the documents, we still have concerns regarding the use of the yard and to
a certain extent, the window, and so we feel we will need to take our objections to the
panel, particularly regarding the yard.

We feel that it is not vital that it is used as a smoking area- that can be carried on upstairs,
at the front of the building as most other businesses do. We accept that the yard should be
available for access and egress, but only for that. We feel that the terms in which the
applicant describes using the yard are too elastic. For example, during a very hot summer
during which a World Cup tournament is being played and which is televised in this
downstairs room- do the smokers { or even, hot and bothered non-smokers) stand outside,
"refreshed" and vocal? Is seating thoughtfully placed there by the management? This
scenario and much more is possible within the statement made by the owners. We say
again that smoking or any other reason for people to linger in the lane area (or yard) should
be discouraged, due to the possibility/likelihood of public nuisance occurring. Although
access by the rear entrance is to be expected, we feel this should be on an exceptional basis.
Our primary concern is to limit public use of the door and yard to essential occasions only.
For example, to admit disabled persons and basement room users and to allow them to exit;
as a fire exit; and for deliveries, if necessary. Not for smokers to come in and out, or for
possible parties of customers to enjoy the outside air. Lastly, for clarity- any fence would not
provide an effective barrier to such noise as was to come from the yard.

Details redacted

Page 65




Page 66




= Ga teshead
FHH COW

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Licensing Act 2003
7 January 2021 - 6 January 2026

7 January 2016 1

Page 67




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182
of the Act.

The Licensing Authority is responsible for:

* the licensing of licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act)

* ensuring that those who are authorised under the Act comply with the
requirements; and

e ensuring that only those who are duly authorised to carry out licensable
activities do so.

This document sets out the Licensing Authority’s policy as to how it will fulfil its
obligations and achieve its strategic aims in this respect.

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Act itself, the Home Office
Guidance, and the other policies and guidance that are referred to in this document.

This Licensing Authority regards each of the Licensing Objective to be of equal
importance.

This document sets out the policies the Licensing Authority will generally apply to
promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions under the Act, and when
addressing non-compliance with the Act itself or any authorisations issued under the
Act. The Licensing Authority will consider deviating from the policy on a case by case
basis, where it believes it to be appropriate and proportionate in all the relevant
circumstances.

Integration with other legislation, policies and guidance

Anyone who is or who seeks to be authorised under the Act to carry out licensable
activities in the Borough of Gateshead should be aware of the other legislation,
policies and guidance that may apply to their business. Failure to comply with other
legislation and/or regulatory regimes can indicate that a licensee is irresponsible,
which may call into question their ability to adequately promote the Licensing
Objectives.

Although from the perspective of the business proprietor, there may be an element
of crossover between licensing and other regimes, they are separate and are treated
as such by the Council.

Applicants and licensees need to be aware of and have regard to:

Gateshead Strategic Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030

the Gateshead Local Plan

Substance Misuse Strategy

Culture Strategy

Gateshead Transport Strategy & Tyne & Wear Local Transport Plan

The Local Government Declaration on Alcohol signed by Gateshead Council
in June 2015

7 January 2016 7

Page 68




54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

519

The Licensing Authority will seek to achieve integration with relevant strategies and
their aims in its decision making.

Human Rights

The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to the following relevant provisions
of the European Convention on Human Rights:

¢ Article 6 that in determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled
to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and
impartial tribunal established by law

* Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for their home and private life;
and

* Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of their possessions.

Equality and Diversity

Applicants and licensees should be aware of their obligations under the Equality Act
2010 and the characteristics protected by the legislation which are:

Age

Disability

Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race

Religion and belief

Sex; and

Sexual orientation

It is expected that responsible licensees will be sensitive to the needs of their varied
customer base and prepared to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate
those needs.

The Equality Act 2010 also requires the Licensing Authority to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of
opportunity; and foster good relations between people with different protected
characteristics. Each application will be considered with this in mind.

Crime and disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of measures
for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on the Council, Northumbria
Police and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the exercise of all their
duties. The reduction of crime and disorder is integral to this Council’s approach to
the Licensing Act.

Data protection

7 January 2016 8

Page 69




5.18

5.19

5.20

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

in tackling anti-social behaviour in many areas where the schemes are well run and
there is a significant level of participation by licence holders in the borough. The
Gateshead Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2013-2015 recognises the importance
of the Pubwatch scheme and envisages it being used to share and develop best
practice and as a forum for training.

Regional and national working

The Licensing Authority participates in regional working through the North East
Strategic Licensing Group, which is comprised of representatives of each of the
twelve North East Licensing Authorities, and forms part of the North East Public
Protection Partnership.

The Licensing Authority also works closely with Balance — the North East Alcohol
Office, to achieve an integrated approach across the region and with key partners
such as the Police.

From the national perspective, representatives of the Licensing Authority participate
in the Local Government Association’s Licensing Policy Forum, and the Licensing
Special Area of Activity for Lawyers in Local Government.

General Principles of the Policy

Each application will be determined on its merits having regard to this Policy,
Guidance under Section 182 of the Act, the Act itself and supporting Regulations.

The Licensing Authority considers:

» the effective and responsible management of premises
¢ instruction, training and supervision of staff; and
* the adoption of best practice

to be amongst the most important control measures for the achievement of all the
licensing objectives. For this reason, the Licensing Authority will expect these
elements to be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant’s operating
schedule.

Applicants who do not clearly demonstrate how they intend to address these issues
in their operating schedules should expect their applications to be objected to,
including by the Licensing Authority.

Also, licensees whose practice does not meet this expectation may have their licence
reviewed, and as above this may be triggered by the Licensing Authority itself.

Licensing Objectives

Applicants will need to provide evidence to the Licensing Authority that, in respect of
each of the four licensing objectives, suitable and sufficient measures, as detailed in

7 lanuary 2016 11

Page 70




7.2

7.3

7.4

their Operating Schedule, will be implemented and maintained, and will be relevant
to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will expect to see evidence that the following specific matters
that impact on crime and disorder have been addressed in the Operating Schedule
of the premises:

* The capability of the person who is in charge to run the premises during
trading hours or when Regulated Entertainment is provided to effectively and
responsibly manage and supervise the premises, including associated open
areas

* The steps to be taken in the absence of the Designated Premises Supervisor
to effectively manage the business.

* The steps taken or to be taken to ensure that appropriate instruction, training
and supervision is given to those employed or engaged in the premises to
prevent incidents of crime and disorder

* The measures taken or to be taken to raise staff awareness and discourage
and prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs on the premises

* The features currently in place or planned for physical security at the
premises, such as lighting outside the premises

* The policies that have been determined in respect of adoption of appropriate
existing and future best practice guidance (eg Safer Clubbing, the National
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit, etc)

* Any arrangements which the licence holder proposes to work in partnership
with the Council, police and other traders in establishing a method of co-
ordinating closing times to prevent crowds emerging from premises at the
same time and to prevent migration between premises with different closing
times

* Any appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the prevention
of violence or public disorder

The extent to which the above matters need to be addressed will be dependent on
the individual style, characteristics and location of the premises, and proposed events
and activities. In general however, the Licensing Authority will expect more
comprehensive measures to be in place at late night entertainment venues or in
premises with a history of crime and disorder issues.

In such premises appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the
prevention of violence or public disorder may include:

* Provision of effective CCTV both within and around premises

7 January 2016 12

Page 71




Employment of SIA licensed door staff
Provision of toughened or plastic glasses
Procedures for risk assessing drinks promotions and events such as ‘happy

hours’ for the potential to cause crime and disorder and plans for minimising
such risks

7.5 The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to representations from the Police
in deciding whether the above issues have been adequately addressed. It will not
normally grant an application where representations indicate a potential negative
impact on crime and disorder, unless the applicant can demonstrate compelling
reasons why the application should be approved in the light of these concerns.

Public Safety

7.6 The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on public safety:

L]

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The age, design and layout of the premises, including means of escape in the
event of fire

The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sale or
supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and including
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature

The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the hours
when licensable activities are provided, if different)

Customer profile (eg age, disability)

The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, etc

7.7 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

Suitable and sufficient risk assessments
Effective and responsible management of the premises

Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the
safety of the premises and patrons

Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the safety of premises and patrons

Adoption of best practice guidance (eg Guide to Fire Precautions in Existing
Places of Entertainment and like premises, The Event Safety Guide, Safety in

7 January 2016 13

Page 72




Pubs published by the BBPA, and the Safety Guidance for Street Arts,
Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances published by
Independent Street Arts Network)

Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels

Implementation of crowd management measures

Proof of regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures,
appliances, systems etc pertinent to safety)

Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.8 The Licensing Authority interprets ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense, and takes it
to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, where
these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity
in an area.

7.9 The Licensing Authority will normally apply stricter conditions, including controls on
licensing hours, where licensed premises are in residential areas.

7.10  The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on the potential for public nuisance:

The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive
premises

The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours
The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities are
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or

outside premises

The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise
limiting features

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The availability of public transport

‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and closure of
the premises, i.e. allowing patrons to remain in the premises for a period after

licensable activities have ceased, so that people do not disperse en masse

last admission time

7.11  The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

7 January 2016 14

Page 73




¢ effective and responsible management of the premises

* appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance eg to ensure customers leave
quietly

» operating hours for all or parts (eg garden areas) of premises, including such
matters as deliveries

* adoption of best practice guidance (eg Good Practice Guide on the Control of
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institute of A.coustics, Licensed
Property: Noise, published by BBPA)

* installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound
limitation devices

* management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues)
* liaison with public transport providers

* siting of external lighting including security lighting

* management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

» effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Protection of Children from Harm

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

The protection of children is an important issue and the licensing regime has a
fundamental role in achieving this. The protection of children from harm includes
moral, psychological and physical harm and applicants are expected to demonstrate
that such factors have been considered in their operating schedules.

Applicants should expect to receive objections in respect of the protection of children
from harm, and licensees should expect their licence to be reviewed, where:

* there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or the premises
have a reputation for facilitating underage drinking

» there is a known association with drug taking or dealing

e there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

* entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

Licensees will be expected to prevent children from viewing films that are unsuitable
because of the age classification of the film that has been imposed by the British
Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Anyone intending to provide staff for the supervision of activities for under 18s will be
expected to carry out enhanced criminal record checks on all such persons, and to
keep a register which should be available to the Police or authorised Council officer

7 January 2015 15

Page 74




8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

Where the Licensing Authority is requested to classify a film for exhibition within the
Licensing Authority’s area, it will do so if the film has not been classified by the British
Board of Film Classification, or such classification is not pending.

When an applicant submits a film for classification, they should provide a copy of the
film to the Licensing Officer, and should indicate the rating that they consider
appropriate. The Licensing Officer shall consult with Northumbria Police and the
Local Safeguarding Children Board. The applicant should provide the copy of the film
at least 28 days in advance of the proposed screening. If the applicant is unable to
provide a copy of the film in DVD format or via a website then they should fiaise with
the Licensing Officer to arrange for a screening of the film for the relevant bodies as
above.

The Licensing Authority shall have regard to any representations received from the
Local Safeguarding Children Board and Northumbria Police. The Licensing Authority
shall have regard to the classification standards applied by the British Board of Film
Classification. The Licensing Authority shall also have regard to (but shall not be
bound by) any classification given to the film by another Licensing Authority.

Where a relevant representation is received, the classification of the film shall be
determined by a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee.

Alcohol sales

It is expected that applicants will set out in their operating schedule the measures
they will take to ensure that a written record is kept of all the names and addresses
of persons who are authorised to sell or supply alcohol at all times, and that the
written record is made available to Police and/or Council officers immediately upon
request.

It is expected that premises licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises will adopt responsible marketing practices and concern may be heightened
where alcohol is promoted in such a way as to encourage people to drink more than
they would ordinarily do and in a manner that doesn’t promote the licensing
objectives, for example quantity based discount promotions and display and
promotion of alcohol products in muitiple positions in a premises.

It is expected that applicants who intend to sell or supply alcohol by delivery or
collection of prepaid orders will include provision in their operating schedules to set
out how they will ensure that they do not:

* serve alcohol to a person who appears to be drunk

* serve alcohol to a person who it is believed will pass it on to persons under 18
years old

» take payment for the alcohol at the place where it is served — sales should be
pre-paid only

It is also expected that applicants will:

e operate an age verification policy of at least a Challenge 25 standard

7 January 2016 18

Page 75




8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

* only deliver to residential addresses
* only stock delivery vehicles with alcohol that has been pre-ordered

* verify that the person that the alcohol is served to is the person who has
ordered it

* only make sales where the purchase price is at least £25 and/or the minimum
unit price of the alcohol is not less than £1 per unit

Petrol stations / garages

The Licensing Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcohol from premises used primarily
as garages. The Section 182 guidance states that premises are used primarily as a
garage if they are used for one or more of the following:

the retailing of petrol

the retailing of derv

the sale of motor vehicles; and
the maintenance of motor vehicles

e e & @

It is expected that applicants for premises licences for premises where any of these
activities take place will set out in their operating schedule that they will submit sales
data on at least a six monthly basis showing:

the number of purchases of fuel alone

the number of purchases of fuel and other goods
the number of purchases of other goods alone, and
turnover for each of these type of purchases.

Takeaways

The Licensing Authority will generally not permit the sale of alcohol from ‘takeaway’
premises that are licensed for late night refreshment, due to the inherent potential for
late night alcohol fuelled crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour and the difficulties
of addressing such behaviour where the consumption of the alcohol and associated
behaviour takes place away from the premises themselves, often in residential areas.
Applicants seeking approval to sell alcohol from ‘takeaway’ premises will need to
clearly demonstrate how they will ensure that their activities will not lead to such
problems.

Qutside areas

Where premises include an outside area it is expected that the operating schedule
will set out how the applicant will address:

* The provision of appropriate bins and other receptacles for litter generated by
patrons

7 January 2016 19

Page 76




9.

9.1

9.2

* Measures to reduce the amount of noise generated by patrons, particularly
late at night. This may include door supervision, closure of outside areas after
a particular time, restricting re-admission to the premises after a particular
time, etc

¢ Provision and placement of appropriate street furniture to prevent persons
‘spilling out’ onto public highway in the vicinity of the premises

* Provision of CCTV covering entrances and exits, external areas, and
surrounding public highways

Licensing Hours

It is expected that premises whose primary activity is off licence sales will not
normally be open between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. Applicants wishing to operate
beyond 23:00 hours will need to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Licensing
Authority, in their operating schedule, that there will be no significant disturbance to
members of the public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity around
the premises concerned. Opening hours beyond 23:00 hours will generally be
considered to be more acceptable for premises in commercial or tourist areas with
high levels of public transport availability, rather than premises in predominately
residential areas.

When considering applications, in respect of hours of operation, the Licensing
Authority will take the following into consideration:

°  Whether the premises is located in a predominantly retail or entertainment
area

¢ The nature of the proposed activities to be provided in the premises

* Whether there are any arrangements to ensure adequate availability of
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles and appropriate places for picking
up and setting down passengers

» Whether there is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessible to
the premises, and in places where the parking and use of vehicles will not
cause demonstrable adverse impact to local residents

* Whether the operating schedule agreed with Council Officers indicates that
the applicant is taking appropriate steps to comply with the licensing objective
of preventing public nuisance

* Whether the licensed activity, particularly if located in areas of the highest
levels of recorded crime, may result in a reduction or increase in crime or anti-
social behaviour

* Whether the licensed activities are likely to cause adverse impact especially
on local residents, and that, if there is a potential to cause adverse impact,
appropriate measures will be put in place to prevent it.

7 lanuary 2016 20

Page 77




9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

*  Whether there will be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from
these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area

In the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Licensing Authority
will normally expect the hours during which alcohol is sold to match the normal trading
hours during which other sales take place, in order to reduce the potential for
disturbance or disorder.

Operating Schedules

Operating schedules should set out the licensable activities that are intended to be
carried out and how it is intended that this happens. Operating schedules should be
sufficiently detailed and clear for interested parties and responsible authorities to
understand how the applicant or licensee will promote the licensing objectives.
When considering the promotion of the licensing objectives, applicants and licensees
should have due regard to the context of the locality that they seek to operate in, and
be mindful of any particular concerns that relate to that locality.

For instance, applicants and licensees are expected to have regard to any Local
Licensing Guidance in respect of the locality they propose to serve.

Applicants are expected to ensure that their operating schedule enables the
Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and interested parties to understand:

e  What licensable activities are intended to be carried out

* When licensable activities will be carried out — i.e. between what hours, on
what days and at what times of year

*  When the premises will be open to the public for non-licensed activities

»  Whether alcohol is intended to be sold for consumption off the premises
(including where it will be delivered to customers)

* (Where the sale or supply of alcohol is intended at premises with a Premises
Licence) who the Designated Premises Supervisor will be and what his / her
address is

*  What steps will be taken to promote the Licensing Objectives.

It is recommended that applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
operating schedules to discuss any relevant concerns.

Designated Premises Supervisor
Designated Premises Supervisors have an important role to play in ensuring that the

measures to promote the licensing objectives that are set out in an operating
schedule are put into practice on a day to day basis.

7 January 2016 21

Page 78




11.3

12.

12.1

Where there is a requirement for premises to have a Designated Premises
Supervisor, it is expected that the person will be a key person related to the premises,
so that matters arising can be dealt with as quickly as possible.

It is expected that a Designated Premises Supervisor will have day to day
responsibility for running the premises and will be present at the premises at least
30% of the time in a seven day week that the premises are open for the carrying on
of licensable activities.

Where the Designated Premises Supervisor is not available at the premises for
whatever reason, the Licensing Authority will expect an individual to be nominated
as a point of contact who will have details of where the Designated Premises
Supervisor can be contacted.

Where there are problems associated with the running of a premises that stem from
the DPS's performance of that role, they may be removed from the role by the
Licensing Sub-Committee.

Conditions

Whilst the Licensing Act sets out the regulatory framework that applies to all
licensees, conditions can be added to individual licences to prescribe how the
licensable activities are to be carried out having regard to all the relevant individual
circumstances.

12.2  There are three types of condition:

* mandatory conditions imposed by the Secretary of State — applicants and
licensees are expected to comply with the relevant mandatory conditions
that apply to the activities they carry out, and to be aware that these
mandatory conditions change from time to time. The Home Office issued
guidance in respect of these mandatory conditions in October 2014:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
data/file/350507/2014-08-29 MC Guidance vi1 0.pdf.

* conditions imposed voluntarily by the applicant / licensee — these
conditions will be consistent with the applicant / licensee’s operating
schedule, although the wording may be amended to ensure clarity and
enforceability. Applicants and licensees should note that in line with this
Policy, in certain cases the Licensing Authority will assume unless
informed otherwise that applicants are volunteering conditions. For
instance, as above where an applicant does not indicate an intention to
provide adult entertainment by ticking box ‘N’ on their application form, it
will be assumed that they are volunteering a condition not to provide adult
entertainment at the premises; and

* conditions imposed at a hearing — the Licensing Sub-Committee may
impose conditions on a licence where it considers it appropriate to do so.
Any such conditions will be appropriate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and proportionate to the problems that the Sub-Committee find
in relation to the premises.

NJ
NJ

7 January 2016

Page 79




12.3 The Licensing Authority does not impose ‘standard’ conditions on licences, but there

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

are certain factors that most premises that carry out certain licensable activities
should take into account. A pool of model conditions is set out in Appendix 1, which
applicants should consider when preparing their operating schedule.

When things go wrong

Complaints about licensed premises

The Licensing Authority will investigate complaints about both licensed premises
where licensable activities are taking place but not in accordance with the relevant
authorisation; and unlicensed premises where licensable activities are taking place
without authorisation.

Complainants will usually, in the first instance, be encouraged to raise the compfaint
directly with the licensee or business concerned, as this can often be the quickest
and most effective way for the person carrying on the licensable activity to understand
the negative impact of the activity.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will initially endeavour to seek a
resolution through informal means.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority may pass any complaint on for
investigation by any other statutory agency under whose enforcement responsibility
the compilaint falls.

Failing to comply with the Licensing Act

The Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services, aimed at safeguarding
the environment and the community and at providing a ‘level playing field’ on which
businesses can fairly trade. The administration and enforcement of the licensing
regime is one of these services. The BRDO has published a Regulators’ Code, which
the Council complies with:

hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/requlators-code

The Council will base its enforcement activities around the principles of consistency,
transparency and proportionality.

The enforcement policy proposes that a graduated response is taken where offences
against licensing legislation are found or where licence conditions have been
contravened. An isolated administrative offence may be dealt with for example by
way of a written warning whilst more serious offences which have either been
committed over a period of time or which jeopardise public safety may result in a
referral for prosecution.

The Council will seek to work actively with the Police, Fire & Rescue Service, Trading
Standards and any other relevant authority to enforce the licensing legistation. This
may include carrying out test purchases, inspections of licensed premises,
investigating complaints about licensed premises and investigating allegations of
unlicensed premises. Such a partnership approach is intended to prevent duplication

7 January 2016 23

Page 80




be open to the interested party or responsible body. For instance, if a licence holder
is found to have sold age restricted products to a minor, it is not necessary for a
prosecution (or indeed a successful prosecution) to take place in respect of that sale
before a review is brought, as the review would consider the steps appropriate to
prevent future underage sales.

Summary reviews

13.16 The Police may request a summary review in serious cases of crime and disorder,

and in which case within 48 hours of the application the Licensing Authority will
consider whether any interim steps are required pending completion of the review
process. This may include immediate suspension of the relevant licence.

14. Delegation and Decision Making

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

The Council has established a Licensing Committee to administer its functions under
the Licensing Act 2003. Powers and functions have also been delegated to Licensing
Sub-Committees and officers in order to provide a speedy, efficient and cost effective
service to all parties involved in the licensing process.

Many of the decisions and functions are largely administrative in nature such as the
grant of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and
certificates where no representations have been made. These will be delegated to
Council officers. All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for information
to the next Licensing Committee meeting.

Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by the
Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee — unless such representations are considered
irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious or unless the Licensing Authority, the applicant and
everyone who has made representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary
(usually after successful mediation).

The table given below sets out the delegation of decisions and functions of the
Licensing Committee, Sub-Committees and officers. The various delegations include
delegation to impose appropriate conditions.

This scheme of delegations is without prejudice to the right of relevant parties to refer
an application to a Licensing Sub-Committee or the full Licensing Committee if
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

Uniess there are compelling reasons to the contrary, the Licensing Authority will
require the Licensing Committee or any of its sub-committees to meet in public —
although Members can retire into private session to consider their decision. A public
announcement of the decision will be made at the end of the hearing together with
clear, cogent reasons for the decision having due regard to the Human Rights Act
1998, the four licensing objectives and all other legislation.

The Licensing Committee will be made up of 15 members and Sub-Committees of

three who will hear any relevant representations from authorised persons,
responsible authorities and interested parties in the form of a hearing.

7 January 2016 25

Page 81




14.8 Where a function is delegated to an officer, that officer will be responsible for liaising
between the applicant, interested parties and the responsible authorities to ensure
that any licence granted is subject to the appropriate conditions. Where objections
are made then the officer will once again liaise with the applicant, interested parties
and the responsible authorities to see if a ‘settlement’ is possible to overcome the
objections without the need for the matter to go before the Sub-Committee.

14.9

The Sub-Committee will determine each case before it on its individual merits.

However, in determining the application the Sub-Committee will consider:

14.10 Delegation of functions:

The case and evidence presented by all parties
The promotion of the four licensing objectives
Guidance issued by Central Government

The Licensing Authority’s own statement of Licensing Policy

/ updated Local
Licensing
Guidance

Matter to be Full Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with Committee
Consideration | Six monthly
of reports to the
committee
Approval of new | Six monthly

Application for

If representation is

If no representation

personal licence made B made
Application for All cases
Personal
Licence with
unspent
convictions
Application for If a relevant If no relevant
Premises representation made representation is
Licence / Club made
Premises
Certificate
Application for a If a relevant If no relevant
Provisional representation made representation is
Statement B made

Application to

vary Premises

Licence / Club
Premises
Cetrttificate

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application to
vary Designated
Premises
Supervisor

If a Police objection

All other cases

Page 82

7 January 2016 26




Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018

Page 83




Page 84




1. Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3 The licensing objectives are:

* The prevention of crime and disorder;
* Public safety;

« The prevention of public nuisance; and
» The protection of children from harm.

1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

» protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

+ giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

» providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 1

Page 85




The guidance

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10  Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 86




Licensing policies

1.11

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

it L

Licensable activities

1.13

For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

» The sale by retail of alcohol;

« The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

« The provision of regulated entertainment; and
» The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions

1.14

General principles

1.15

The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

+ Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities. !

« Club premises certificate — to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club |
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

« Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

» Personal licence - to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 3

Page 87



Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as
‘must’, “shall” and “will" is encouraged. Licence conditions:

* must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
» must be precise and enforceable;
» must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

» should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

« must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case;

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;

» should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

+ cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct

management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

» should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.47

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

1.18

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 88




Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

The Gambling Act 2005

The Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Noise Act 1996

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Equality Act 2010

The Immigration Act 2016

Regulators’ Code under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 5

Page 89




2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

21

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 90




2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

2.9

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

» Fire safety;

« Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

+ Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

» Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

« Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

« Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

+ Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

» Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 7

Page 91

D —




Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10

Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

» Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

« Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

211

Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any
other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities — such as health and safety
authorities — should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

212

2.13

“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

''§ 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance.

8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 92




2.14

those premises should be.

Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 9

Page 93




2.20

2.21

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

* adult entertainment is provided;

* a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

+ itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

» there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

» in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 94




2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

* restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

» restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

+ restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

* age restrictions (below 18);

* restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

* requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

» full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related ilinesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a ,
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 11

Page 95



authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

2.31 Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any
emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32 Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under
section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 96




3.

Licensable activities

Summary

3.1

3.2

A premises licence authorises the use of any premises (see Chapter 5) for licensable
activities. Licensable activities are defined in section 1 of the 2003 Act, and a fuller
description of certain activities is set out in Schedules 1 and 2 to the 2003 Act.

The licensable activities are:

+ the sale by retail of alcohol;

+ the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a rﬁember of the
club;

+ the provision of regulated entertainment; and
» the provision of late night refreshment.

Wholesale of alcohol

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The sale of alcohol to the general public is licensable under the 2003 Act in accordance
with the definition of “sale by retail” in section 192 of the 2003 Act. This section makes it
clear that, to be excluded from the meaning of “sale by retail’, a sale must be:

* made from premises owned by the person making the sale, or occupied under a
lease with security of tenure; and

» for consumption off the premises.
In addition, to be excluded, the sales must be sales which are made to:

* a trader for the purpose of his trade;

* to a club for the purposes of that club;

- to a holder of a premises licence or a personal licence for the purpose of making
sales under a premises licence; or

*+ a premises user who has given a temporary event notice, for the purpose of making
sales authorised by that notice. |

If an employee were buying alcohol as an “agent” for their employer and for the i
purposes of their employer’s trade (i.e. selling alcohol), this could be treated as a sale to
a trader. If, however, an employee were buying for the employee’s own consumption,
this would be a retail sale, and would require a licence.

The same considerations apply in the case of caterers who supply alcohol to their
customers. Where a caterer purchases alcohol and then sells this alcohol to its
customer, an authorisation will be required at the location where the retail sale of the
alcohol is made (likely to be the caterer's own premises). If the customer was proposing
to sell the alcohol under an authorisation, it is the customer who would need an
authorisation under the 2003 Act. In this case, the exemption under the 2003 Act may [
apply to the sale made by the caterer. '

From 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for example, retailers of alcohol and
trade buyers) will need to ensure that the UK wholesalers that they buy alcohol from
have been approved by HMRC under the Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme
(AWRS). They will need to check their wholesalers Unique Registration Number (URN)

14 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 97



Page 98




8. Applications for premises licences

Relevant licensing authority

8.1

8.2

Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority in which the premises are
situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority

where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located

equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is
important that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact.

Section 13 of the 2003 Act defines the parties holding important roles in the context of
applications, inspection, monitoring and reviews of premises licences.

Authorised persons

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

The first group —*authorised persons’— are bodies empowered by the 2003 Act to carry
out inspection and enforcement roles. The police and immigration officers are not
included because they are separately empowered by the 2003 Act to carry out their
duties.

For all premises, the authorised persons include:

» officers of the licensing authority;

+ fire inspectors;

+ inspectors with responsibility in the licensing authority’s area for the enforcement of
the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;

+ officers of the local authority exercising environmental health functions

Local authority officers will most commonly have responsibility for the enforcement of
health and safety legislation, but the Health and Safety Executive is responsible for
certain premises. In relation to vessels, authorised persons also include an inspector or
a surveyor of ships appointed under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995.
These would normally be officers acting on behalf of the Maritime and Coastguard
Agency. The Secretary of State may prescribe other authorised persons by means of
regulations, but has not currently prescribed any additional bodies. If any are
prescribed, details will be made available on the GOV.UK website.

Where an immigration officer has reason to believe that any premises are being used
for a licensable activity, the officer may enter the premises with a view to seeing
whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed in connection
with the licensable activity.

Responsible authorities

8.7

The second group —“responsible authorities”— are public bodies that must be fully
notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing
authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises
licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing
authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises,
responsible authorities include:

+ the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 49

Page 99




8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

the premises is situated;

+ the chief officer of police;

+ the local fire and rescue authority;

+ the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;

+ the local authority with responsibility for environmental health;

+ the local planning authority;

* a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters
relating to the protection of children from harm;

« each local authority's Director of Public Health (DPH) in England* and Local Health
Boards (in Wales);

» the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and

» Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State).

The licensing authority should indicate in its statement of licensing policy which bodly it
recognises to be competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm. This
may be the local authority social services department, the Local Safeguarding Children
Board or another competent body. This is important as applications for premises
licences have to be copied to the responsible authorities in order for them to make any
representations they think are relevant.

In relation to a vessel, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within
the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory
functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed, or any
waters where it is proposed to be navigated when being used for licensable activities;
the Environment Agency; the Canal and River Trust; and the Secretary of State (who in
practice acts through the Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA)). In practice, the
Environment Agency and the Canal and River Trust only have responsibility in relation
to vessels on waters for which they are the navigation statutory authority.

The MCA is the lead responsible authority for public safety, including fire safety,
affecting passenger ships (those carrying more than 12 passengers) wherever they
operate and small commercial vessels (carrying no more than 12 passengers) which go
to sea. The safety regime for passenger ships is enforced under the Merchant Shipping
Acts by the MCA which operates certification schemes for these vessels. Fire and
rescue authorities, the Health and Safety Executive and local authority health and safety
inspectors should normally be able to make “nil” returns in relation to such vessels and
rely on the MCA to make any appropriate representations in respect of this licensing
objective.

Merchant Shipping legislation does not, however, apply to permanently moored vessels.
So, for example, restaurant ships moored on the Thames Embankment, with permanent
shore connections should be considered by the other responsible authorities concerned
with public safety, including fire safety. Vessels carrying no more than 12 passengers
which do not go to sea are not subject to MCA survey and certification, but may be
licensed by the local port or navigation authority.

* This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended
the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012.

50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensingléct 2003

age 100




8.12.

The Secretary of State may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of
regulations. Any such regulations are published on the Government'’s legislation
website: www.legislation.gov.uk.

Other persons

8.13

8.14

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business
entitied to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the
grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises
certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these
persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations
made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or
more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing
authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an
additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the
licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10)
provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious
representations.

While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a
representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A
representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a
Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in
such a capacity.

Who can apply for a premises licence?

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

Any person (if an individual aged 18 or over) who is carrying on or who proposes to
carry on a business which involves the use of premises (any place including one in the
open air) for licensable activities may apply for a premises licence either on a
permanent basis or for a time-limited period.

“A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. Licensing
authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold the licence or
determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold the licence.

In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it must be
stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant must be carrying on
a business which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities. In the case of
public houses, this would be easier for a tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning
company that is not itself carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held
by businesses, it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of
clarity in accountability.

A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and wife, civil
partners or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be actively involved in
carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is entirely possible for the
husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as applicant for the premises licence,
even if they are not formally partners in business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the
same issues of clouded accountability that could arise where two separate businesses

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 51

Page 101




8.19

apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence would
identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent applications, for
example for a variation of the licence, would need to be made jointly.

A wide range of other individuals and bodies set out in section 16 of the 2003 Act may
apply for premises licences. They include, for example, Government Departments, local
authorities, hospitals, schools, charities or police forces. In addition to the bodies listed
in section 16, the Secretary of State may prescribe by regulations other bodies that may
apply and any such regulations are published on the Government'’s legislation website.
There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being made for a
premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already held.

Application forms

8.20

The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 require local authorities to ensure that all
procedures relating to access to, or the exercise of, a service activity may be easily
completed, at a distance and by electronic means. Electronic application facilities for
premises licences may be found either on GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own
website. It remains acceptable to make an application in writing.

Electronic applications

8.21

Applicants may apply using the licence application forms available on GOV.UK, or will
be re-directed from GOV.UK to the licensing authority’s own electronic facility if one is
available. Applicants may also apply directly to the licensing authority’s facility without
going through GOV.UK.

Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk

8.22

8.23

GOV.UK will send a notification to the licensing authority when a completed application
form is available for it to download from GOV.UK. This is the day that the application is
taken to be ‘given’ to the licensing authority, even if it is downloaded at a later stage,
and the application must be advertised from the day after that day (as for a written
application). The licensing authority must acknowledge the application as quickly as
possible, specifying the statutory time period and giving details of the appeal procedure.

The period of 28 consecutive days during which the application must be advertised on a
notice outside the premises is, effectively, the statutory timescale by which the
application must be determined (unless representations are made). This will be
published on GOV.UK and must also be published on the licensing authority’s own
electronic facility if one exists. If no representations are made during this period, the
licensing authority must notify the applicant as quickly as possible that the licence has
been granted. The licensing authority must send the licence to the applicant as soon as
possible after this, but the applicant may start the licensed activity as soon as they have
been notified that the application is granted (subject to compliance with the conditions of
the licence). The licence may be supplied in electronic or written format as long as the
applicant is aware which document constitutes ‘the licence'. If representations are
made, the guidance in Chapter 9 applies.

Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities

8.24

The licensing authority must copy electronic applications, made via GOV.UK or its own
facility, to responsible authorities no later than the first working day after the application

52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

age 102



is given. However, if an applicant submits any part of their application in writing, the
applicant will remain responsible for copying it to responsible authorities.

Applications via the local authority electronic application facility

8.25

Where applications are made on the licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the
application will be taken to be ‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete
application form and paid the fee. The application is given at the point at which it
becomes accessible to the authority by means of the facility. The licensing authority
must acknowledge the application as quickly as possible, specifying the statutory time
period and giving details of the appeal procedure.

‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

The Government recommends (as for written applications) that electronic applications
should not be returned if they contain obvious and minor errors such as typing mistakes,
or small errors that can be rectified with information already in the authority’s
possession. However, if this is not the case and required information is missing or
incorrect, the licensing authority may ‘hold’ the application until the applicant has
supplied all the required information. This effectively resets the 28 day period for
determining an application and may be done any number of times until the application "
form is complete. Licensing authorities must ensure that they notify the applicant as
quickly as possible of any missing (or incorrect) information, and explain how this will
affect the statutory timescale and advertising requirements.

If an application has been given at the weekend, the notice advertising the application
(where applicable) may already be displayed outside the premises by the time that the
licensing authority downloads the application. It is therefore recommended that, if a
licensing authority holds an application, it should inform the applicant that the original (or
if necessary, amended) notice must be displayed until the end of the revised period. The
licensing authority should also advise the applicant that they should not advertise the
application in a local newspaper until they have received confirmation from the licensing
authority that the application includes all the required information. To ensure clarity for
applicants, the Government recommends that licensing authorities include similar
advice on their electronic application facilities (where these exist) to ensure that
applicants do not incur any unnecessary costs.

If an applicant persistently fails to supply the required information, the licensing authority
may refuse the application and the applicant must submit a new application.

Licensing authorities may also ‘defer’ electronic applications once if the application is
particularly complicated, for example if representations are received and a hearing is
required. This allows the licensing authority to extend the statutory time period for the
determination of the application by such time as is necessary, including, if required,
arranging and holding a hearing. Licensing authorities must ensure that applicants are
informed as quickly as possible of a decision to defer, and the reasons for the deferral,
before the original 28 days has expired.

Written applications

8.30

A written application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to the
relevant licensing authority and be copied to each of the appropriate responsible
authorities. For example, it would not be appropriate to send an application for premises

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 53

Page 103



8.31

8.32

8.33

Plans

8.34

which was not a vessel to the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. The application must
be accompanied by:

+ the required fee (details of fees may be viewed on the GOV.UK website);
 an operating schedule (see below);
+ aplan of the premises in a prescribed form; and

+ if the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual
who is to be specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor (DPS).

If the application is being made by an individual it should be accompanied by acceptable
evidence of entitlement to work in the UK (this includes where the application is
submitted electronically), as set out in the application form (see paragraph 4.8).

If the application is being made in respect of a community premises, it may be
accompanied by the form of application to apply the alternative licence condition.

Guidance on completing premises licence, club premises certificate and minor variation
forms can be found on the GOV.UK website. The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises
licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 contain provision about the
prescribed form of applications, operating schedules and plans and are published on the
legislation.gov.uk website.

Plans, for written and electronic applications, will not be required to be submitted in any
particular scale, but they must be in a format which is “clear and legible in all material
respects’, i.e. they must be accessible and provides sufficient detail for the licensing
authority to be able to determine the application, including the relative size of any
features relevant to the application. There is no requirement for plans to be
professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information.

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces

8.35

8.36

8.37

Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other
outdoor space as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is
to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In
scenarios where drink orders are taken by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor
space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from the licensed premises and
returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale and any
conditions that relate to off-sales would apply.

In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on
the plan as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be
necessary for the applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as
part of the area covered by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service
whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the
provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar or a service
whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them
drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the
licensed premises to collect them).

If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales
only, there is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed

54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensingﬁct 2003

age 104




application form requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and
its proximity to the premises.

Entitlement to work in the UK

8.38

8.39

8.40

Individuals applying for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol or late night
refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. From 6 April 2017 licensing authorities
must be satisfied that an individual who applies for a premises licence is entitled to work
in the UK. This includes applications made by more than one individual applicant. An
application made by an individual without the entitlement to work in the UK must be
rejected. This applies to applications which include the sale of alcohol and the
provisions of late night refreshment, but does not include applications which apply to
regulated entertainment only. For example, a person applying for a licence for a music
venue who does not intend to sell alcohol or late night refreshment is not prohibited from
applying for a licence on grounds of immigration status. However, they will commit a
criminal offence if they work illegally.

The documents which may be relied on in support of an application demonstrating an
entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for personal licence applicants see
paragraph 4.8. Where there is sufficient evidence that the applicant is not resident in the
UK there is no requirement that the applicant has an entitlement to work in the UK.

Where an applicant’s permission to work in the UK is time-limited the licensing authority
may issue a premises licence for an indefinite period, but the licence will become invalid
when the immigration permission expires. The individual’'s entitlement to work in the UK
may be extended or made permanent by the Home Office, and granting the licence for
an indefinite period prevents the licensee from having to re-apply for a new licence. In
the event that the Home Office cuts short or ends a person’s immigration permission
(referred to a curtailment or revocation), any licence issued on or after 6 April 2017
which authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment will
automatically lapse. As with personal licences, the licensing authority is under no duty to
carry out on going immigration checks to see whether a licence holder’s permission to
be in the UK has been brought to an end. For further details on entitlement to work see
paragraphs 4.8 to 4.18.

Steps to promote the licensing objectives

8.41

8.42

In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the
statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations
of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge
of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the
licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to
publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and
to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However,
applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which
the premises are situated to inform the content of the application.

Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to
demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives, that they understand:

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 55

Page 105




8.43

8.44

8.45

8.46

8.47

8.48

» the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder
hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may
congregate;

» any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and

+ any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary
schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other
schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they
will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a
cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an
understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will
take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an
exception to the policy.

It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining
the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example,
premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this
will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the
promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which
may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no
known concerns, acknowledge this in their application.

The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the
licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of
use to applicants include:

» the Crime Mapping website;

» Neighbourhood Statistics websites;

* websites or publications by local responsible authorities;

» websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and
+ on-line mapping tools.

While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before
formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert
advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an
application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between
applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses
before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise.

Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this
section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on ’
providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants
are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the
premises.

All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing
objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that
applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the
operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached

56 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

age 106



9.

Determining applications

General

9.1

When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an
application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the
application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in
accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the
2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises
certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with
regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This
means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the
application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations.

Where no representations are made

9.2

A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no
responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where
representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing
authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which
are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the
2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing
authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating
schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence
conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications,
for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have
subsequently been agreed.

Where representations are made

9.3

Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to
9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged
if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are
also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can
be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations

9.4

A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from
new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that
nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives.
For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to

68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 107




Page 108

AT T




9.

Determining applications

General

9.1

When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an
application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the
application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in
accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the
2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises
certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with
regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This
means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the
application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations.

Where no representations are made

9.2

A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no
responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where
representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing
authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which
are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the
2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing
authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating
schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence
conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications,
for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have
subsequently been agreed.

Where representations are made

9.3

Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to
9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged
if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are
also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can
be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations

94

A representation is “relevant’ if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from
new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that
nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives.
For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to

68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the LicensiniactQZOOS

Page




Page 110

T e T M £ TR A e S



Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible
authority

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in
respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6
April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office
Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf.
When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do
so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is
concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations

9.26  Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required
under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with
copies of the relevant representations that have been made.

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority
may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal
details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded
fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis,
they may wish to consider alternative approaches.

9.29 Forinstance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority
with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so
that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal
details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general
location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered
where the circumstances justify such action.

Hearings |

9.31  The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 governing hearings may be found
on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If the licensing authority decides that
representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a
hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the licensing authority, where the
applicant and all of the persons who made relevant representations have given notice to
the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. Where this is the case and
the authority agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, it must forthwith give notice to the
parties that the hearing has been dispensed with. Notwithstanding those regulatory j
provisions, in cases where the licensing authority believes that a hearing is still :
necessary, it is recommended that the authority should, as soon as possible, provide
the parties with reasons in writing for the need to hold the hearing. In cases where only
‘positive’ representations are received, without qualifications, the licensing authority
should consider whether a hearing is required. To this end, it may wish to notify the
persons who made representations and give them the opportunity to withdraw those
representations. This would need to be done in sufficient time before the hearing to
ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary inconvenience.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 73

Page 111



9.32

9.33

9.34

9.35

9.36

9.37

9.38

Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in
good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit licensing
authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period
where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the
application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider
giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing
commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a
notice to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it.

The 2005 Hearings Regulations require that representations must be withdrawn 24
hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the
hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing.
However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations
are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement,
the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations
to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest.

Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as
local residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their
applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits
come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must meet the
requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise which are
not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements as they
see fit as long as they are lawful.

There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made
representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in
reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local
authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer
may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing
authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities
may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible
authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing
determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented
by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process.

As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a
responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual
has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination.

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:

74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

age 112




+ the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

+ the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;
» this Guidance;

 its own statement of licensing policy.

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the
conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide
reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties.
Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party
to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the
application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.
Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is
merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to
the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to
the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has
not been necessary.

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify
a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable
activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish
hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most
current information.

9.41 In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to
or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an
applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or
both of these where appropriate.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should
be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case
may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to
achieve.

9.44  Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to
achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide
that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the
potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such
as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the
potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 20031 75

Page 113




imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing
authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to
mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the
track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing
authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the
evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are
made simultaneously

9.45

Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that
they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing
committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts
prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and
scheme designs.

76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the LicensingFect 2003

age 114




10. Conditions attached to premises

licences and club premises certificates

General

10.1

10.2

10.3

This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises
licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set
out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16).

Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and
essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club
premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the
carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with
any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on
conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The
courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are
imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided.

There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate:
proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail
below.

Proposed conditions

10.4

10.5

The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should
emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or
certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a
premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out
the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other
hours during which the premises will be open to the public.

It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an
applicant’'s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the
applicant’s intention.

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule

10.6

10.7

The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has
been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made
by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted
subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the
application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act.

Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as
that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may
lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important
therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and
unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must
be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 77

Page 115




Imposed conditions

10.8  The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been
exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a
hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to
promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are
aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to
minor variations.

10.9 ltis possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote
the licensing objectives.

Proportionality

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type,
location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned.
Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions
which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions
should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of
CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be
appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the
prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night
refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work
checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any
document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises.
Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect
costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events
that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes.
Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only
those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises

10.11  The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of
alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence
of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks
linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should,
in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for
the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to
impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the
Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case
by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives.

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on
the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure
that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to
those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are
considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are
published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If
a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code,

78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 116



16. Regulated entertainment

Types of regulated entertainment

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision of
regulated entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities which are not
and therefore exempt from the regulated entertainment regime. Changes to regulated
entertainment are due to take effect on 6 April 2015. Therefore, up until that date you
should refer to chapter 16 of the guidance published in October 2014.

The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:

» a performance of a play;

+ an exhibition of a film;

* an indoor sporting event;

» a boxing or wrestling entertainment;

+ a performance of live music;

+ any playing of recorded music;

» a performance of dance; and

» entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of
recorded music or a performance of dance.

To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose
(at least partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises made available
for the purpose of enabling that activity; and must also either:

+ take place in the presence of a public audience, or

» where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view
to profit.

Guidance around what constitutes audiences and private events is at paragraphs 16.11-
16.14.

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are
not licensable

16.5

There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other authorisation'®)
under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give examples of every
eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not licensable. However, the
following activities are examples of entertainment which are not licensable:

» activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;
+ activities in places of public religious worship;

+ education — teaching students to perform music or to dance;

+ the demonstration of a product — for example, a guitar — in a music shop;

+ the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where no
charge is made with a view to making a profit;

*® The word 'licence’ is typically used as a reference to all forms of authorisation

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 123

Page 117

——



This page is intentionally left blank



+ Morris dancing (or similar)'®;

* Incidental music — the performance of live music or the playing of recorded music if it
is incidental to some other activity?’;

* Incidental film — an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some other
activity?';

» A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;

» Garden fetes — or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private gain;

 Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art galleries;

+ Television or radio broadcasts — as long as the programme is live and simultaneous;

* Vehicles in motion — at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or temporarily
parked;

+ Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);

» Stand-up comedy; and

- Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)®.

16.6  As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act?®, no licence is
required for the following activities:

 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

» Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500%*.

+ Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not
exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is
responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by
age classification ratings.

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00
on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.

+ Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or
display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

* Live music: no licence permission is required for:

— a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
on any premises.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,

9 Including any live music or playing of recorded music as an integral part of a performance of Morris dancing, or similar activity.
% See paragraphs 16.57-16.61

¥ See paragraphs 16.65-16.68

22 This was previously licensable under the 2003 Act until the commencement of the Live Music Act 2012.

% The Live Music Act 2012 ("2012 Act’) hitp://www.legislation gov.uk/ukpaa/2012/2; Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of
Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013 ("2013 Order”) http://www.legislation.qgov.uk/uksi/2013/1578/contents/made ; The
Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 ("2014 Order”)
http:/iwww.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/3253/introduction/made; and the Deregulation Act 2015 ("2015 Act").

% But see paragraphs 16.47 -16.48 in relation to dance that is adult entertainment and remains licensable.

124 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin t 2003

age 1




provided that the audience does not exceed 5007°.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in
a workplace?® that does not have a licence, provided that the audience does
not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in
a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided
that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent
for the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider
for the hospital.

* Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

+ Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, with no limit on audience size for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500%’.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises,
that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the
non- residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a ,
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the |
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care
provider for the hospital.

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where
the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;

any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care
provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care
provider;

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment)

% Provided that a number of other important conditions are satisfied (see paragraphs 16.38-16.43).

% The Live Music Act 2012 provides that if premises are licensed under the 2003 Act, they cannot also be treated as a
workplace for the purpose of the 2012 Act.

7 Provided that a number of other important congitions are satisfied, see paragraphs 16.38-16.43.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 125

Page 120



Page 121




Travelling circuses

16.25

Where types of entertainment are present in a performance by a travelling circus® they
will not be licensable provided that certain qualifying conditions are met®'. The qualifying
conditions are that:

+ the entertainment is not an exhibition of a film or a boxing or wrestling entertainment;

« the entertainment takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day;

+ the entertainment takes place wholly within a moveable structure and the audience
present is accommodated wholly inside that moveable structure; and

« the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28
consecutive days.

Live music

16.26

16.27

16.28

Live music is licensable:

» where a performance of live music — whether amplified or unamplified — takes place
before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;

« where a performance of amplified live music does not take place either on relevant
licensed premises, or at a workplace that is not licensed other than for the provision
of late night refreshment;

» where a performance of amplified live music takes place at a time when the relevant
licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply
of alcohol for consumption on the premises®?;

» where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant licensed
premises, or workplaces®, in the presence of an audience of more than 500
people®; or

+ where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation
provided for by the 2003 Act when imposing a condition on a premises licence or club
premises certificate as a result of a licence review®”.

In any of the above circumstances, unless the performance of live music is appropriately
authorised by a premises licence, club premises certificate or TEN, allowing it to take
place could lead to enforcement action and, where relevant, a review of the alcohol
licence or certificate.

A public performance of live unamplified music that takes place between 08.00 and
23.00 on the same day no longer requires a licence under the 2003 Act in any location.
An exception to this is where a specific condition related to live music is included
following a review of the premises licence or club premises certificate in respect of
relevant licensed premises.

* 'Travelling circus' is defined in the 2014 Order as meaning a circus which travels from site to site for the purpose of giving

performances. Musical entertainment at a travelling fairground is likely to be incidental to the main attractions and rides that are
not themselves regulated entertainment.

® There is no audience limit for this exemption, but the conditions are designed to ensure that deregulation does not have
unintended consequences for the licensing objectives — e.g. only bona fide travelling circuses qualify.

®2 See Chapter 3 of this Guidance

%3 See paragraph 16.31

% The 2014 Order substituted "500” for “200" that was in the 2012 Act
% See paragraphs 16.55-16.56

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 131

Page 122



16.29 As a result of the amendments to the 2003 Act, section 177 of the 2003 Act now only

applies to performances of dance®.

Key terms used in relation to live music
16.30 Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental music or any

16.31

16.32

combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of live music in the presence of
an audience which it is intended to entertain. While a performance of live music can
include the playing of some recorded music, ‘live’ music requires that the performance
does not consist entirely of the playing of recorded music without any additional
(substantial and continual) creative contribution being made. So, for example, a drum
machine or backing track being used to accompany a vocalist®” or a band would be part
of the performance of amplified live music. The performance of a DJ who is merely
playing tracks would not be classified as live music, but it might if he or she was
performing a set which largely consisted of mixing recorded music in a live performance
to create new sounds®®. There will inevitably be a degree of judgement as to whether a
performance is live music (or recorded music) and organisers of events should check
with their licensing authority if this consideration is relevant to whether the activity is
authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a dispute about whether a
performance is live music or not, it will be for the licensing authority initially and
ultimately, for the courts to decide in the individual circumstances of any case.

A “workplace” is as defined in regulation 2(1) of the Workplace (Health, Safety and
Welfare) Regulations 1992 and is anywhere that is made available to any person as a
place of work. It is a very wide term which can include outdoor spaces, as well as the
means of entry and exit.

A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one which is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises by a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Premises cannot benefit from the deregulation
introduced by the 2012 Act by virtue of holding an authorisation for the sale or supply of
alcohol under a TEN.*®

Recorded music

16.33

No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on premises which are
authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to be used for the supply
of alcohol for consumption on the premises. However, recorded music remains
licensable:

» where the playing of recorded music takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any
day;

» where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the relevant licensed
premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises;®°

» where the playing of recorded music takes place at relevant licensed premises in the

% See paragraph 2.13. Post the 2013 Order, Section177 can be relevant to a performance of dance after 23.00 on any day
% Karaoke is generally classed as a performance of live music

% This would include ‘scratching’

% TENs are covered in chapter 7

% See Chapter 3 of this Guidance

132 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 123




presence of an audience of more than 500 people; and

» where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation
provided for by the 2003 Act (as amended).®

Plays and dance

16.34 No licence is required for a performance of a play or dance to the extent that certain
qualifying conditions® are satisfied. However a performance of a play or dance remains
licensable:

+ where the performance takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; or

» where the performance takes place in the presence of an audience of more than 500
people.

Indoor Sport

16.35 No licence is required for an indoor sporting event to the extent that certain qualifying
conditions® are satisfied. However an indoor sporting event remains licensable:

» where the event takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;
* where the event takes place in the presence of more than 1000 spectators.

Licence conditions

Live Music or recorded music

16.36 Any existing licence conditions®* (or conditions added on a determination of an
application for a premises licence or club premises certificate®®) which relate to live
music or recorded music remain in place, but are suspended between the hours of
08.00 and 23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met:

+ at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the purposes of
being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;

+ if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more than 500
people; and

+ the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day.

16.37 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter of fact in
each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition relates to music and will
be suspended, for example “during performances of live music all doors and windows
must remain closed”. In other instances, it might not be so obvious: for example, a
condition stating “during performances of regulated entertainment all doors and
windows must remain closed” would be suspended insofar as it relates to music
between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an audience of up to 500, but the
condition would continue to apply if there was regulated entertainment after 23.00.

16.38 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management of potential
noise nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision of entertainment (e.g.

& This would be by way of imposing a condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate as a result of a licence
review, see paragraphs 16.55-16.56

%2 See paragraphs 16.6 and 16.45-16.48

& See paragraph 16.6.

® I relation to relevant licensed premises, see paragraph 16.32
% See paragraphs 16.39-16.40

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 133

Page 124




signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue to have effect.

16.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must determine
applications for a new licence or to vary an existing premises licence. Licence
conditions imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded
music activities will only apply if the activity meets the criteria of having more than 500
people present, and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00.

16.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a
performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before an
audience of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the face of the licence for when
these activities may take place under other circumstances.

16.41 Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on relevant
licensed premises is not licensable, it remains possible for anyone to apply for a review
of a licence or certificate, if there are appropriate grounds to do so.5¢

Beer gardens

16.42 Beer gardens are often included as part of a premises licence or club premises
certificate. Live amplified music that takes place in a beer garden is exempt from
licensing requirements, provided the beer garden is included in the licence or certificate
applying to the relevant licensed premises, and the performance takes place between
08.00 and 23.00 on the same day before an audience of 500 people or fewer.

16.43 Where a beer garden does not form part of the relevant licensed premises and so is not
included in plans attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate, it is
nevertheless very likely that it will be a workplace®’. Paragraph 12B of Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act says that a performance of live music in a workplace that does not have a
licence (except to provide late night refreshment) is not regulated entertainment if it
takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day in front of an audience of no
more than 500 people. Note that the exemption in paragraph 12B does not apply to the
playing of recorded music.

16.44 However, a licensing authority may, where justified®®, impose a licence condition that
relates to the performance of live music in an unlicensed beer garden being served by
any associated premises licence or club premises certificate. Provided such a condition
is lawfully imposed, it takes effect in accordance with its terms.

Plays, dance and indoor sport

16.45 Where qualifying conditions are satisfied®®, any current licence condition that relates to
a performance of a play or dance, or an indoor sporting event for which a licence is no
longer required will (except in the circumstances described in the next paragraph) have
no effect.

16.46 Where, however, these non-licensable activities take place at the same time as other

® See paragraphs 16.55-16.56 and chapter 11.

&7 A beer garden is one example of a potential workplace, see paragraph 16.31. Whether other outdoor spaces (such as seating
adjacent to a premises, a smoking shelter, or a car park) constitute a workplace, part of the licensed premises, or neither, will be
a matter of fact in each case.

N Including on a licence review
% See paragraph 16.6

134 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 125




This page is intentionally left blank



Not Set

idox

Pa

Not Set One company: Infinite possibilities
n i~ — o8 z
- ]
[
%
? o =
ety 3 % a
irosq Plac Tﬂ-? g = CB
Cafho! ]
5.0m_ P
o &
e > . - é@.“; g
\2
Lﬁqu § o / / ™
a&a:rlt : 8 §
b [ ] j
) ' ] S /) a
_‘_1,' Il
on §! 1im lmgs =~
Ige .
LOW FELL (2] s
PH ™
'ﬁ ":w g elter L
[ ] [ | ] (]
n
Car Park a 3 . [ ] .
- | 87em|| g8 u N'S
.__% alg ﬁ 2 ]
£ |-m g g‘é_ Suse) ®
Y 3 ] §
= WolERl 82 o) 2 %
Wlno Darling Hou ~ 5 7
e\ o=t : ortiné; Bq
0 00125 0025 005

Scale: s w— <

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of He
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012,

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

Organisation Gateshead Council
Department Development and Public Prote
Comments Not Set

Date 22/11/2021

MSA Number SLA

e 127




Page 128

e e g




	Agenda
	1 Application for a Premises Licence
	Appendix 1 Application
	Appendix 1.1 pool of model conditions
	Appendix 2 Objection
	Appendix 2.1 Additional information from Applicant
	Appendix 2.2 Conditions
	Appendix 2.3 Response from objector
	Appendix 3
	Appendix4 Part 1
	Appendix 4 Part 2
	Appendix 5 Area Plan


